
 

 

If you would like to attend this meeting as a member of the Public, please contact  
Democratic Services either by telephone on 01775 764454 or via email at  

demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 
 

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 
 
Date & Time - Wednesday, 8 September 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Function Room, South Holland Centre, Market 
Place, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 1SS 

 
 

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel: 
 
Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), J R Astill, M D Booth (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, 
T A Carter, A C Cronin, J L King, J D McLean, N H Pepper, P A Redgate, G P Scalese, 
A C Tennant, J Tyrrell, S C Walsh and D J Wilkinson 
 
Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may be appointed only 
from members who are not on the Cabinet.  Substitutions apply for individual 
meetings only.  
 
Quorum: 5 
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   31 August 2021 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



A G E N D A 
 
1  Apologies for absence. 

  
 

2  Minutes -  
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following meetings: 
 

 

a)   Performance Monitoring Panel -  
18 March 2021 (copy enclosed) 
 

(Pages 
5 - 18) 

b)   Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development 
Panel -  
29 June 2021 (copy enclosed) 
 

(Pages 
19 - 26) 

c)   Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development 
Panel -  
22 July 2021 (enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
27 - 32) 

3  Declaration of Interests. -  
Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without 
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item, 
except where a councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation. 
 

 

4  Questions asked under Standing Order 6 
  

 

5  Tracking of Recommendations -  
To consider responses of the Cabinet to reports of the Panel. 
 

 

6  Items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 
  

 

7  Key Decision Plan -  
To note the current Key Decision Plan 
 

(Pages 
33 - 38) 

8  Economic Development/Inward Investment update -  
To provide an update to Performance Monitoring Panel on current work 
being undertaken to support the South Holland economy (report of the 
Acting Executive Director enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
39 - 48) 

9  DWP -  
The Partnership Manager for the DWP (Graham Metcalfe) will be in 
attendance to give an explanation of Universal Credit, and other projects 
that the DWP are working on. 
 

 

10  Marketing/Renovation of Industrial Units -  
The Panel will receive a presentation from the Assistant Director, 
Property and Delivery on the current situation regarding the marketing 
and renovation of industrial units.  
 
 
 

 

Page 2



11  Q4 Performance Overview Report 20/21 -  
To provide an update on how the Council is performing for the period 1 
January 2021 to 31 March 2021 (report of the Portfolio Holder for 
People, Places and Corporate enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
49 - 66) 

12  Q1 21/22 Performance Overview -  
To provide an update on how the Council is performing for the period 1 
April 2021 to 30 June 2021 (report of the Portfolio Holder for People, 
Places and Corporate enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
67 - 82) 

13  Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme -  
To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel 
(report of the Assistant Director – Governance (Joint Monitoring Officer) 
enclosed. 
 
The Panel will also give consideration to the formation of a Task Group 
to look at the South Holland Centre and its future operations. 
 
 
 

(Pages 
83 - 90) 

14  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent -  
 
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 

circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. 

 

 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 41 - 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in line with The 
Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority & 
Police & Crime Panel Meetings) (England & Wales) Regulations 2020, on Thursday, 18 
March 2021 at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
B Alcock (Chairman) 

M D Booth (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

J R Astill 
T A Carter 
J D McLean 
A M Newton 
 

N H Pepper 
P A Redgate 
G P Scalese 
A C Tennant 
 

J Tyrrell 
S C Walsh 
D J Wilkinson 
 

  
 
In Attendance:  The Portfolio Holder for Assets and Planning, the Executive Manger – 
Governance, the Strategic Housing Manager, the Programme Manager, the Democratic 
Services Manager and the Democratic Services Trainee. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors C J T H Brewis, 
A C Cronin and J L King  
 
 
 Action By 
56 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 Notification had been received that Councillor A M Newton was 

replacing Councillor C J T H Brewis for this meeting only.  
 

   
57 MINUTES   
  
 Consideration was given to the minutes of the meetings of the 

Performance Monitoring Panel held on 27 January 2021 and 9 February 
2021 and the meetings of the Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and 
Policy Development Panel held on 21 January 2021 and 9 February 
2021.  
 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the minutes of the meeting of Performance Monitoring Panel 

held on 27 January 2021 be signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record; 

 
b) That the minutes of the meeting of Performance Monitoring Panel 

held on 9 February 2021 be signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record; 

 
c) That the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Performance Monitoring 

Panel and Policy Development Panel held on 21 January 2021 be 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record; and 

 
d) That the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Performance Monitoring 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2a)



- 42 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
18 March 2021 

 

 
Panel and Policy Development Panel held on 9 February 2021 be 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record.  

   
58 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.   
  
 There were no declarations of interests.   
   
59 QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6   
  
 There were no questions arising.   
   
60 TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS   
  
 There were no responses.   
   
61 ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL.   
  
 There were no items referred.   
   
62 KEY DECISION PLAN   
  
 Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 4 March 

2021. 
 

• Members questioned around the funding made available for energy 
improvements for homes within South Holland, and asked where the 
funding would come from, and how much it would be. 

o The Housing Landlord Services Manager reported that 
there had been success in a grant application to the 
Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Phase 1B 
(GHG LAD Phase 1B) and that funding had been 
received for energy efficiency works .There would also 
be an element of matched funding from the Capital 
Programme, from the HRA reserves.  It would be a 
maximum of £5,000 of grant funding per individual 
property.  There would be an initial grant of £255,000 
with any works being carried out matched to a third, 
equating to approximately £85,000 from the Capital 
Programme. This funding would be available for tenants 
of the Council’s own housing stock.  

 
AGREED: 
 
That the Key Decision Plan issued on 4 March 2021 be noted.  

 

   
63 PROPERTY ACQUISITION TO SUPPORT THE NEXT STEPS 

ACCOMMODATION PROGRAMME (PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
DECISION)  

 

  
 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 

Governance, which provided members with a summary of issues 
relating to the recent Portfolio Holder Decision ‘Property acquisition to 
support the Next Steps Accommodation Programme’. 

 

Page 6



- 43 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
18 March 2021 

 

 
 
At a special meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel held on 9 
February 2021, pre-decision scrutiny had been undertaken on a 
decision to be made by the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Planning 
relating to ‘Property acquisition to support the Next Steps 
Accommodation Programme’.  The Panel had raised a number of 
issues, detailed within the report, and had requested that the Portfolio 
Holder be notified in writing that the property in question should not be 
purchased, and that he should consider a more suitable property, with 
no chain, and that did not require so much work.  
 
On 22 February 2021, the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Planning 
made his decision, as detailed within the report.  Attached at Appendix 
A was the report that had accompanied the decision, and this included a 
summary of the comments from the Performance Monitoring Panel, 
together with the Portfolio Holder’s responses to each point, and an 
assessment of whether there was a justification for proceeding to 
acquire the property. 
 
The Panel had requested that the Portfolio Holder attend this meeting to 
provide a fuller response to the objections raised at the meeting on 9 
February 2021.  The report clarified that, whilst the Panel could question 
the Portfolio Holder further on the matter, a final decision had been 
made and was in the process of implementation. 
 
Prior to discussion, the Chairman made it clear that the purpose of the 
meeting was not to revisit the discussion on this item, as it had been 
considered at the meeting on 9 February - the Portfolio Holder had been 
present at that meeting and would have been aware of the strength of 
feeling expressed, and the overwhelming support for the 
recommendations. The Chairman continued that, following on from the 
meeting on 9 February, the Portfolio Holder had received a further 
report from officers - with the benefit of that report, and taking into 
account the comments and recommendations of members of the Panel, 
the Portfolio Holder had proceeded to make his decision in line with the 
original recommendation. 
 
The following issues were raised: 
 

• Members asked for clarification as to why it had been necessary to 
take the decision urgently, when it had been stated during the 
discussion at the meeting in February, and within the report, that an 
extension period had been requested to provide more time for the 
decision to be made, and that within 10 days, that extension had 
been agreed. 

o The Portfolio Holder responded that the matter had been 
considered by the Council on 25 November 2020 where 
it had been agreed to pursue the Next Steps 
Programme. The Housing Team had contacted himself, 
as the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Planning, the 
Portfolio Holder for Finance, Strategy and Partnerships 
and the Portfolio Holder for HRA and Private Sector 
Housing, and the very strict timeframes to be adhered to 

Page 7



- 44 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
18 March 2021 

 

 
had been made clear.  The time frame was from 
November 2020 to 31 March 2021 and it had therefore 
been necessary to proceed very quickly within the 
timeframe, in order that the Government funding could 
be secured.  With regard to the extension, the Portfolio 
Holder advised that there had been no evidence that the 
extension would happen. It had been suggested, but not 
confirmed, and his decision had therefore been based on 
the evidence at the time. The deadline had been 31 
March, and the Housing Team and all involved had had 
to do all that was necessary in a short period of time.  

 

• Members stated that when criteria were set in order to deal with a 
matter, that the criteria should be adhered to. In addition, it was felt 
that there had been a good reason to wait for the extension before a 
decision was made, and concern was raised regarding the fact that 
the property added to the stock was old and that improvements 
could potentially be costly. 

 

• Members stated that following the meeting of the Panel in February, 
when it had been resolved by 13 votes to 1 in favour of 
recommending that the Council was not to purchase a particular 
property, the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Planning had been 
reported in the ‘Spalding Voice’ newspaper dated 4 March 2021 as 
saying that he had had to make a decision as to whether what had 
been decided at the meeting overruled what housing and 
homelessness experts at SHDC had said.  Members did not feel this 
was the case.  The Panel had not stated that a third property should 
not be purchased, instead, that a number of considerations should 
be taken into account, and that a more suitable property be 
purchased.  Concern was expressed that by over-ruling an 
overwhelming recommendation, the impression given was that the 
Council was run by Officers, not Members. 

o The Portfolio Holder confirmed that this was not the 
case. He advised that all comments and evidence arising 
from the meeting of the Panel in February had been 
listened to and taken into account, but that he had also 
attended meetings, prior to the Panel meeting, over a 
period of three months, with Housing officers, 
Homelessness officers and officers relevant to his 
Portfolio.  He had had to weigh up all of the information 
to ensure that the correct decision was made, and he 
reiterated the fact that he believed that he had made the 
right decision. When making the decision as to whether 
to follow the recommendations of the Panel or those of 
the officers within the report, the Portfolio Holder had 
compared the property in question with one bought in 
Park Road, Spalding.  He had concluded that both were 
very similar, built in the same period, with a similar 
parking situation.  As there appeared to be no real 
difference, and the Panel had not questioned the 
purchase of the Park Road property, this had assisted 

Page 8



- 45 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
18 March 2021 

 

 
him in making his decision regarding the property in the 
Monkshouse ward. 

• Members were not satisfied with this response and responded that 
the report in the newspaper had stated that the officer 
recommendations had been taken into account over the decision of 
the thirteen members of the Panel.  It was felt that this gave the 
impression to the public and to members that members’ views were 
discounted.  

 

• Members questioned whether the Portfolio Holder had visited the 
location of the property. 

o The Portfolio Holder confirmed that he had not visited the 
property, due to the lockdown situation, but he knew the 
location. 

 

• The Chairman reported that he had visited the location prior to the 
meeting and expressed concern over the dismissal of the potential 
parking issue.  He also questioned whether the Portfolio Holder had 
familiarised himself with the policies within the local plan, relating to 
houses of this nature, and houses in multiple location. 

o The Portfolio Holder confirmed that he had not, and also 
that he was not aware of rough sleepers that drove cars. 

• The Chairman responded that the property might also be used for 
people that had been made homeless through no fault of their own, 
who could own a vehicle.  

 

• Members questioned the suitability of the property for the purpose 
with regard to issues around party wall considerations, the level of 
insulation, potential replacement of electrical systems, the windows 
and the adequacy of the heating, and questioned how the Portfolio 
Holder had satisfied himself that those concerns had been 
adequately covered. 

o The Portfolio Holder stated that the Housing Team were 
aware of the work that had to be undertaken at the 
property.  Costings took into account all of the potential 
work having to be done, although all may not be 
ultimately required. It was suggested that the cost could 
be divided by three as three homeless people would be 
placed in the property. The fact that the property had to 
be retained for thirty years meant that homeless people 
being placed in a property was the main value to the 
Council.  The Portfolio Holder advised that he had been 
assisted by officers, and had considered the information 
in conjunction with the Portfolio Holder for Finance, 
Strategy and Partnerships and the Portfolio Holder for 
HRA and Private Sector Housing, in arriving at his 
decision.  

 

• Members suggested that this type of housing could be controversial 
within wards and that it would be prudent to have the backing of all 
ward members.  Members also questioned whether the views of the 
ward members had been taken into account following the 

Page 9



- 46 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
18 March 2021 

 

 
recommendations from the Panel’s meeting in February 

o The Portfolio Holder confirmed that he was in agreement 
that ward members should be consulted with regard to 
issues happening in their wards.  He and the other two 
Portfolio Holders had been advised by the Housing Team 
that the ward members had been spoken to and liaised 
with. 

• Members responded that it had been clear that the ward members 
were not happy at the Panel meeting in February, that it was clear 
that they were opposed to the property in question, and suggested 
that the Portfolio Holder should have spoken to them following the 
meeting, to ensure that their views had been taken into 
consideration. 

o The Portfolio Holder replied that the ward members had 
been notified, and whilst he appreciated that there was 
some concern at the meeting, he had been assured by 
the Housing Manager that all concerns and issues had 
been discussed. 

 

• Members suggested that this issue may not have been helped by 
the fact that pre-decision scrutiny had been undertaken.   

o The Chairman clarified that he had been asked to hold the 
meeting at the appointed time because of the urgency of the 
decision.  He had been assured that, had the Portfolio 
Holder first made his decision, and the decision had then 
been called in, it would have been very difficult to achieve 
the time frame which ended on 31 March 2021.  

 

• Some members reported, that having looked at the report and 
recalling questions asked at the last meeting, there seemed to be a 
robust justification for proceeding.  

 

• Members commented that the policy within the Local Plan relating to 
properties of this nature dealt with a number of issues other than 
parking. Bearing in mind the issues raised regarding parking, it 
would have been considered useful had the Portfolio Holder 
familiarised himself through the Planning Department with any other 
parking issues that were in the locality, especially the risk of setting 
a precedent.  

 

• Members questioned why a more modern property had not been 
considered, particularly as the property was to be retained for thirty 
years. Although the report stated that many of the costs relating to 
the property chosen were not specifically in relation to its age, it was 
suggested that problems and issues were generally common in 
older properties, and that it would therefore have been better to 
purchase a newer property. 

o The Portfolio Holder advised that when potential properties 
were being identified, consideration had to be given to the 
location of the property and the proximity of facilities and 
amenities such as doctors’ surgeries and shops. He and the 
other two Portfolio Holders had been presented with 29 

Page 10



- 47 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
18 March 2021 

 

 
properties to consider. If a new property had been 
purchased, the same costs would have been incurred in 
converting the property for three people to have their own 
separate bedroom and bathroom.  Money had been saved 
by purchasing an older property at a lower price. 

• Members responded by asking that, as members had felt that better 
value could have been gained from purchasing a newer property, 
was the Portfolio Holder satisfied that all aspects of purchasing a 
newer property been considered? 

o The Portfolio Holder replied that he was satisfied that this 
was the case. 

• Members still expressed concern that converting an old property 
would be more difficult, and fraught with problems. 

 

• Members stated that a substantial extension was being added to the 
property next door to the one in question – would this have any 
adverse effect on the value of the house being purchased? 

o The Portfolio Holder advised that he could not recall an 
extension on the next door property being mentioned. 

 

• It was confirmed that the property could house men or women, and 
no specific decisions had yet been made on who the 
accommodation would be allocated to. 

 

• Members questioned if it could be confirmed that help had been 
offered to search for a property and that suggestions of properties 
had been made with three double bedrooms (one en-suite), 
separate upstairs bathroom and downstairs shower room, which 
could have been converted, and was within five years old? 

o The Portfolio Holder responded that he was aware that other 
properties had been suggested, but that these had not been 
put forward to the Portfolio Holders to make a decision on.  

 

• Members questioned what role the Portfolio Holder saw the 
Performance Monitoring Panel taking in any future decisions that he 
had to make. 

o The Portfolio Holder responded that all reports and 
comments would be taken into consideration, and that 
scrutiny was an important part of the process. 

 

• Members questioned what the Portfolio Holder had learned from this 
process. 

o The Portfolio Holder advised that, in his role, humane 
considerations had to be taken into account, alongside value 
for money.   

 

• Members questioned whether the disregard of the Panel’s 
recommendations would have any effect on the reputation of the 
Authority. 

o The Portfolio Holder responded that he hoped that this was 
not the case, and he confirmed that the scrutiny process 
remained important. 

Page 11



- 48 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
18 March 2021 

 

 
 
The Chairman thanked the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Planning for 
his attendance at the meeting, and for answering the Panel’s questions. 
 
The appendix relating to this item was attached to the agenda as an 
exempt item however, no discussion of the exempt information was 
required, and the item was therefore considered in open session. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the responses of the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Planning be 
noted.    

   
64 DIGITAL WORK PROGRAMME   
  
 The Panel was advised that it would receive two updates, the first on 

the Northgate system, and the second an update on the current 
situation with regard to the Digital Work Programme. 
 
Northgate System 
 
The Housing and Landlord Services Manager provided the Panel with a 
presentation on the Northgate System, used by the Housing Team.  
 

• Prior to the introduction of the Northgate system, the Housing 
Department had used at least 7 different systems that each stood 
alone and were not interlinked. The solution was therefore to have 
one system that served all areas that the Housing Department dealt 
with, which both officers and customers could use, and which did 
everything required in a more user-friendly, easy-to-access way. 

• One of the first improvements was a task summary facility for the 
officers and managers which prioritised the tasks that needed to be 
dealt with, enabling them to be actioned effectively. 

• With regard to Private Sector Housing, improvements had been 
made to the customer facing side of the system, relating to 
applications for HMO licences.  This had previously been a paper- 
based task, which had been dealt with by officers.  With the new 
system, all necessary information could be uploaded by the 
customer in real time, along with supporting documents and 
payment. The application would then move into a processing queue 
for officers to deal with. 

• With regard to the Repairs service, improvements had been made 
by combining the two systems previously used into the one area, 
which could be updated in real time, and which could also be used 
by customers. A new pictorial guide to repairs had been created 
which asked the necessary questions to ascertain the type and 
severity of the problem. If the job was automatically diagnosed to be 
an emergency, notification would immediately be sent to the PDA 
device of the officer on call, to be dealt with as an emergency repair. 
Ultimately, the customer would be able to book their repair 
appointment via an online appointment system – work on this stage 
of the process was still underway. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



- 49 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
18 March 2021 

 

 

• Members were advised that officers were currently halfway through 
the project timeline. 

 
Members considered the information and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

• Members commented that the pictorial side of the system for 
reporting repairs was very useful, particularly for people with 
learning difficulties.  However, would residents who did not wish to 
use the on-line system still be able to access the previous method of 
reporting via direct contact with an officer? 

o The Housing and Landlord Services Manger confirmed 
that the system was an enhancement, not a 
replacement, and that the direct contact system would 
still remain in place. 

 

• In terms of the customer experience, how would it be confirmed that 
any repair work had been undertaken, and that the customer 
experience had been completed?   

o With regard to customer satisfaction, the system would 
generate housing dashboards that would break down 
jobs by trade, showing the satisfaction achieved for the 
customer.  

 

• Could members assist their own residents in completing the 
information on the Northgate system? 

o Officers responded that family, friends or members could 
assist tenants in completing the information online, or 
they could make direct contact with the Council, as 
before.  

 

• An amount of £220,000 had been invested in the housing system – 
how could it be shown that this investment demonstrated value, in 
terms of increased efficiencies? 

o The Housing and Landlord Services Manager advised 
that the main advantage of the system was the increased 
capacity that it could create.  Officers would be able to 
spend more time on more complicated issues within their 
areas, and dealing with vulnerable customers. Savings 
would also be achieved through the closure of older 
systems, information from which would be incorporated 
within the new system.  

 

• Members requested that an analysis of the savings generated by 
the system, showing whether it had been value for money, could be 
provided to members in the future. 

o The Housing and Landlord Services Manager confirmed 
that this could be provided. 

 

• Members questioned whether the system could be open to misuse 
as a result of customers entering information themselves – how 
could all requests being stated as an emergency be avoided? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



- 50 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
18 March 2021 

 

 
o The Housing and Landlord Services Manager responded 

that a recharge would be applied where it was found that 
a job that had been booked as an emergency was not of 
that status. 

 

• Members questioned how jobs would be allocated to the operatives, 
taking into account the time left on the job they were currently 
dealing with and their distance from the new job.  

o The Housing and Landlord Services Manger confirmed 
that there was a dynamic scheduling tool that worked out 
the availability of the operatives, and which took into 
account the distance they would need to travel. The 
current scheduling software relied on a manual upload 
once a week by the Logistics Manager who would then 
allocate jobs in order to accommodate emergencies. The 
advantages of the new system were that the level of 
customer service would be improved, as well as the 
customer experience, as customers would be able to 
book and track the repairs themselves. 

 

• Members commented that where a similar system had been used 
elsewhere, the operatives’ mileage had in fact doubled. Concern 
was expressed and there was a suggestion that the mileage should 
be monitored. 

o The Housing and Landlord Services Manager advised 
that as usage of the new system progressed, a 
presentation on the scheduling software could be 
provided to reassure members of its effectiveness. 

• Members responded that it was important to monitor the system to 
ensure that there were no unintended consequences and 
unforeseen problems. 

 

• Members questioned whether all necessary questions were asked 
of the customer during completion of their repair request on the 
system.  Was further information required to ascertain if the 
customer could have prevented the issue?  It was also suggested 
that as part of the online reporting process, customers should be 
informed of their responsibility to adhere to the appointment, and if it 
was found that incorrect information had been provided, a recharge 
would be issued. 

o The Housing and Landlord Services Manager responded 
that questions were already asked, which ascertained if 
the problem was the responsibility of the customer, and if 
so, that no further action would be taken. If the repairs 
were to be dealt with by the operatives, the system would 
ensure that they were dealt with quickly and efficiently, 
but if the repair was due to tenant damage or wilful 
damage, the system would make it clear that a recharge 
would be applied. 

 

• Members questioned if the analytics produced by the system could 
highlight whether particular issues were being regularly reported 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



- 51 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
18 March 2021 

 

 
which could potentially indicate a District-wide problem.   

o The Housing and Landlord Services Manager advised 
that in terms of repairs, two property systems were being 
brought together under the new system, and that in 
relation to analytics, if a particular component was not 
reaching the end of its suggested life or was requiring a 
greater number of routine repairs than expected, it would 
be highlighted to assist with future decisions around 
purchases and investments.  He also stated that 
parameters could be set for the analytics dashboards, 
around areas for consideration relating to customer 
satisfaction, expected component life cycles and when 
components were due for replacement. It would also be 
possible to share information with the customer via the 
Tenants Portal.  

 

• Members asked whether it would be possible for them to use the 
system under a test environment in order that they could answer 
residents’ questions regarding it more effectively. 

o Officers confirmed that a demonstration of the system 
could be provided to members. 

 

• Members asked if a report could be provided giving further 
information on progress of the system, and detailing performance as 
a result of having the system installed. 

o The Housing and Landlord Services Manger advised that 
this would be possible.  He explained that there were 
some improvements to the system that would be going 
live during the summer, and that September would 
therefore be an appropriate time for an update.  

 
Members thanked the Housing and Landlord Services Manager for his 
update, and his clarity around answering the questions. 
 
Digital Work Programme 
 
The Programme Delivery Manager provided the Panel with a 
presentation concerning challenges and opportunities, next steps, and a 
financial update on the Digital Work Programme.   
 

• The impact of Covid 19 had created different financial pressures for 
the Council, changing attitudes and behaviours, changing 
relationships and numerous other challenges. The opportunity had 
been taken to redefine the short-term digital strategy, to re-focus 
resources, to adapt to meet residents’ needs, to develop existing 
channels, and to seek new partnership working.  

• The Digital Team were holding daily meetings with the 
Communications and Digital teams. There had also been regular 
meetings with the Digital teams at SHDC and PSPS, creating a 
more collaborative relationship.  

• There would be one single plan of action, that would be deliverable 
and would demonstrate efficiency savings.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JK  
 
 
 
 
 
JK  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



- 52 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
18 March 2021 

 

 

• Between April 2020 and March 2021, economic development had 
been supported with the production of a multiple business grants 
online application service. Support had been given to ensure the 
Local Restriction Support grant scheme web content had been kept 
up to date.  Web content for the different business grants had been 
made available to the public.   

• Work had been undertaken with the Communications team to 
provide web activity analytics to support SHDC’s social media 
platforms. An online contact function had been created and 
introduced for the Economic Development Team. In collaboration 
with PSPS and SHDC’s Economic Development team the new 
Grants4Growth website had been crafted and delivered. 

• An online application for e-permit for Castle Parking had been 
created and introduced.  

• The “Tenants Self-Service” area of the website had been reviewed 
and delivered, including a full re-write of the content. 

• Following a website accessibility score of 60% in July 2020, work 
had been undertaken to improve the website and the score in March 
2021 had improved to 86%.  

• In summary the work undertaken had concentrated on the crossover 
between web and social engagement, and trends in user needs, 
scoping a “book and pay” solution for SHDC, managing and 
maintaining the web content around Covid-19, and the project 
management of the introduction of Microsoft Teams.  

• The introduction and development of an online booking service for 
market traders during the free-rent pitch period (phase one) had 
also been implemented and this was continued to phase two, which 
offered a full “book and pay” service for market pitch booking.  

• An online form had been created and launched for Custom and Self-
Build registration. 

• Moving forward the work schedule allowed for the continuation of 
the project management of Northgate Housing and the Tascomi 
system, used by the Licensing team.  

 

• Members were also provided with a financial update.  The original 
funding for the Digital Team had been £331,613. The current 
projection was that there would be an under spend of approximately 
£19,000. However, further funds could be forthcoming from Central 
Government due to the Covid pandemic, and officers suggested that 
a further report be given at a later date, taking this into account.  

 
Members considered the information, and the following issues were 
raised: 
 

• Members asked who was undertaking all the work that had been 
outlined. 

o The Programme Delivery Manager advised that she was 
undertaking this work, along with the Digital Project 
Manager, and an SHDC Web Content Manager.  In 
addition, there was also a PSPS/SHDC resource of 37 
hours per week allocated to the programme. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SK, ES  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



- 53 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
18 March 2021 

 

 

• Members commented that the Panel had, for some time, been 
requesting a clear report on the financial situation, and questioned if 
the expenditure of £220,000 mentioned by the Housing and 
Landlord Services Manager was included within the £331,000 
funding figure. 

o The Programme Delivery Manager advised that the 
figure of £220,000 was in addition to the £331,000, as 
the Northgate system was a separate business case. 

 

• A number of points were raised with regard to the continued 
relevance of the existing programme: 

• Members stated that a report was needed as soon as possible, 
clarifying the position relating to the overall programme, and 
whether that programme was still relevant in light of the 
changing landscape. 

• Members questioned the fact that the original proposal had 
included references to Breckland Council, and that as that 
partnership was now ending, this needed to be reviewed. 

• The Council’s Budget stated that an amount of £627,000 from 
years 2020 to 2023/24 had been budgeted to be spent on IT and 
Digital-related projects (including the Northgate system) and that 
a further £84k had been budgeted for items such as Office 365 – 
these figures were significant and a report was required to see if 
that money was being spent effectively. 

• Members stated that the Authority needed to revisit the original 
programme, and questioned how the Performance Monitoring 
Panel could assist with this – how could the Authority deliver 
what was required, in a cost-effective way? 

• The involvement of PSPS had previously been questioned, but 
their experience was considered a resource that could be used – 
was it time for the Authority to reconsider how it delivered the 
project? 

o The Place Manager advised that a new IT Board had 
been created, which included officers from SHDC and 
PSPS.  The Board would be considering all the items 
that had been added into the shared plans, to ensure 
that they were still fit for purpose.  The experts in PSPS 
were fundamental to the IT Board and ongoing 
discussions.  

• Members responded by requesting a report be produced, dealing 
with all the aspects discussed at this meeting, and that could 
demonstrate that a robust plan was in place moving forward. 

o The Place Manager asked for time to liaise with 
Democratic Services and the officers involved to produce 
a report. 

• The Chairman suggested that a special meeting be arranged to 
provide sufficient time to consider the content of the report. 

 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the presentations be noted;  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SK, ES  

Page 17



- 54 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
18 March 2021 

 

 
b) That the following be provided, with regard to the Northgate system: 

 
i. An analysis of the savings generated by the system, showing 

whether it had been value for money; 
ii. A presentation on the scheduling software, as usage of the 

system progressed; 
iii. A demonstration to members of the Northgate software, in 

order that they could familiarise themselves with the system 
and thus assist the public, if required; and 

iv. An update report, giving further information on progress of 
the system, and detailing performance as a result of having 
the system installed, for consideration at the meeting on 8 
September 2021. 

 
c) That, with regard to the Digital Work Programme, a special meeting 

of the Performance Monitoring Panel be arranged, and a report 
produced to consider the following issues raised by the Panel: 

 
i. Clarification of the position relating to the overall programme, 

and whether it was still relevant in light of the changing 
landscape; 

ii. A review of the programme in light of the ending of the 
partnership with Breckland Council; 

iii. Whether the money allocated to the programme was being 
spent effectively; 

iv. A review of the original programme, and how it was 
delivered; and how the Authority could deliver what was 
required in a cost-effective way.  

   
65 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME   
  
 Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager – 

Governance which set out the Work Programme of the Performance 
Monitoring Panel.  The Work Programme consisted of two separate 
sections, the first setting out the dates of the future panel meetings 
along with propose items for consideration, and the second setting out 
the Task Groups that had been identified by the Panel. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the report be noted.  

 

   
66 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 

URGENT  
 

  
 There were none.   
   
 
(The meeting ended at 8.20 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 

Page 18



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of a Special Meeting of the JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 
AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in the Marquee Suite, Springfields 
Events & Conference Centre, Camelgate, Spalding, PE12 6ET, on Tuesday, 29 June 
2021 at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
B Alcock (Chairman) 

 
 

 

J R Astill 
J Avery 
A C Beal 
F Biggadike 
T A Carter 
A C Cronin 
 

R A Gibson 
J L King 
J D McLean 
A M Newton 
N H Pepper 
P A Redgate 
 

J L Reynolds 
G P Scalese 
A C Tennant 
S C Walsh 
 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors M D Booth, 
C J T H Brewis, M Hasan, G T D Rudkin, S-A Slade, D J Wilkinson and A R Woolf  
 
In Attendance:  Head of Paid Service and Strategic Advisor, Democratic Services 
Manager, Democratic Services Trainee 
 
 
 Action By 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   

  

 Councillor Alcock was elected Chairman for the duration of the 
meeting. 

 

   

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

  

 There were no declarations of interest.  

   

3. A NEW LOCAL STRATEGIC ALLIANCE FOR SOUTH-EAST 
LINCOLNSHIRE  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Paid Service 
and Strategic Advisor which set out the recommendations from 
Stage Two of the review of the future of the Integrated Shared 
Management Structure and Joint Working Arrangements for 
South Holland District Council. 
 
Members asked for clarity as to what would happen if either 
Boston Borough Council or East Lindsey District Council did not 
vote to pursue a business case to develop the new local strategic 
alliance for South East Lincolnshire. 
 

• The Strategic Advisor clarified that if the decisions had not 
been agreed at either council then the recommendation 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 2b)



- 2 - 
 
JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 29 June 2021 

 

 

would not be put forward to South Holland District Council 
members at a special meeting of the council on 1st July.  

 
Members expressed concern over the structure of the Shared 
Senior Management team and how this would be shared across 
the 3 Councils. 
 

• The Strategic Advisor responded as follows: 
o That the shared Senior Management structure 

would include Tiers 1-3 of the current SHDC 
Management structure, which would be the posts of 
Chief Executive, the Executive Directors and the 
Assistant Directors;  

o The Chief Executive and one Executive Director 
post are currently vacant; 

o The costings for this Shared management structure 
are split based on a population ratio of 31% SHDC, 
23% BBC and 46% ELDC; 

o There would be a smaller share of a larger number 
of senior officers across the 3 authorities; 

o There would be a greater cost saving to SHDC 
across this partnership than there was across the 
Breckland partnership and as there would be a 
larger team, there would be more resilience across 
the Senior Management Team; 

o It had been proposed that there would be a Deputy 
Chief Executive in post at each of the three 
authorities; 

o Heads of Service would remain SHDC based. 
 

Members asked what would happen to the current S151 Officer 
and Monitoring Officer at BBC/ELDC if SHDC officers were to be 
installed in those statutory roles across all 3 authorities. 
 

• The Strategic Advisor responded that the current officers 
had been informally consulted about the proposals and 
were in principle happy to relinquish those statutory roles. 
He confirmed that those officers would still be employed 
within the Shared Management Structure. 

 
Members raised concerns over whether the current staff 
employed in the SHDC Management structure were the best fit for 
the roles they were in. 
 

• The Strategic Advisor confirmed: 
o That the starting point for the structure were no 

redundancies for the SHDC senior team. The 

Page 20



- 3 - 
 
JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 29 June 2021 

 

 

partnership’s goal was not to fundamentally 
restructure the management team but a bringing 
together of the strengths of all three existing senior 
teams in a new structure that would work for 
partnership; 

o The strategic alliance has a policy of no compulsory 
redundancies; 

o No concerns about current staff had been raised 
directly with the Head of Paid Service. 

 
Members asked whether there could only be one person 
appointed to each statutory role across the partnership. 
 

• The Strategic Advisor responded: 
o That it had been agreed that only 1 person would be 

designated  in each statutory posts across the 
partnership to enable consistent advice and support 
to be provided across the three authorities.  

o The Monitoring Officer post did not require any 
specific qualifications whereas the S151 officer was 
required to be a qualified accountant and the Head 
of Paid Service was required to have a reasonable 
degree of senior experience and  responsibility.  

 
Members asked whether any resignations had occurred at any 
level since the announcement of the intended partnership. 
 

• The Strategic Advisor confirmed that that was not the 
case. 

 
Members were reassured to hear that a Deputy Chief Executive 
would be put in post and based at South Holland. 
 
Members were concerned that not enough information had been 
contained in the report, that Members had not had enough 
engagement so far in the process and not enough scrutiny had 
taken place. 
 
Members commented that East Lindsey and Boston Councils 
were setting up a Joint Scrutiny Panel specifically to discuss the 
development of the business case for the partnership. Was this 
something that could be set up at South Holland as well? 
 
Members wanted to understand the level of services that East 
Lindsey and Boston were providing their residents with and 
whether they will bring value to South Holland’s services.  
 

Page 21



- 4 - 
 
JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 29 June 2021 

 

 

Members raised concerns that there were no points to be able to 
monitor the success of the partnership included within the report 
other than financial savings. 
 

• The Strategic Advisor confirmed that the purpose of the 
report before members was to signal a direction of intent 
but give the Joint Panels the opportunity to amend or add 
recommendations to the report that would go to Full 
Council. 

 
Members commented that no formal meeting had taken place in 
choosing the preferred partnership option and they felt that an 
executive decision on the preferred option should have been 
taken and scrutiny followed after that.  
 

• The Strategic Advisor confirmed: 
o That no decision had been made so far and the 

decision for Full Council to make was to enter into 
the partnership, subject to the business case that 
would be put forward at the end of July being 
acceptable.  

o A reasonable amount of informal member 
engagement had already taken place prior to a 
preferred option being chosen and Members were 
aware of the reasons for the informal basis of 
engagement; 

o If, it was the view of Members, that the business 
case that was brought to Full Council is not 
satisfactory, the decision to form a partnership 
would be taken or not at that time.; 

 
Members asked who would have input in developing the business 
case and what would be contained within it. 
 

• The Strategic Advisor detailed: 
o That the business case was already being 

developed in anticipation of a decision being made; 
o The business case would detail the strategic and 

financial case for going into the partnership. It would 
detail how financial savings would be made and how 
the strategic priorities would be delivered; 

o It would detail the services that are in scope for 
review and the order in which these services would 
be reviewed; 

o The business case would also include the timeframe 
for the delivery of the programme and any 
investments that were required for that delivery; 

Page 22



- 5 - 
 
JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 29 June 2021 

 

 

o That subject to the decision taken by the Full 
Council, the interim Chief Executive and Head of 
Paid Service, Rob Barlow, would pull together the 
resources to build the business case, memorandum 
of agreement and the proposed structure of the 
partnership to be considered by the Full Council by 
the end of July 2021. 

 
Members asked how the new interim Chief Executive was going 
to get an insight into the way that SHDC works and it needs and 
priorities. 
 

• The Strategic Advisor responded that if Rob Barlow were 
to be appointed as Head of Paid Service and Chief 
Executive on an interim basis, he would engage with 
members immediately to ensure he was aware of the 
priorities of SHDC. 

 
Members expressed concerns that the priorities of South Holland 
did not line up with those of East Lindsey and Boston. 
 
Members raised the following areas as observations to be made 
to Full Council regarding the Panel’s concerns: 
 

• Targets needed to be set that are not purely financial; 

• Reassurance needed to ensure that Senior Managers time 
would not be taken up disproportionately elsewhere; 

• Reinforce that officers were visible and easily accessible to 
members; 

• A robust programme put in place to raise staff morale 
before and after the process; 

• Ensure that the authority was able to take opportunities to 
work with other authorities and private enterprises outside 
of the partnership; 

• Ensure that PSPS maintains its independence as long as it 
remains effective; 

 
The Strategic Advisor reassured Members that priorities would 
always be determined by them. In terms of the partnership, 
priorities need to be looked at on an individual basis to ascertain 
whether they would be better done alone or in partnership. 
 
Members asked whether specific timescales could be written into 
the recommendations to Council. 
 

• The Strategic Advisor asked members for clarity what a 
realistic timescale would look like for them and what format 

Page 23



- 6 - 
 
JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 29 June 2021 

 

 

they would like Scrutiny to take place in. 
 
Members asked whether the other 2 authorities were member-led. 
 

• The Strategic Advisor informed Members that work would 
need to be done to assure officers that the relationship with 
members would be the same and consistent across the 
partnership and that members expectations were taken 
into consideration. 

 
Members questioned how the 31% time share for shared officers 
would work in a practical sense.  
 
Members were disappointed that the business case had not yet 
been developed and presented to members as part of the report. 
 

• The Strategic Advisor confirmed that the business case 
had not yet been developed as a decision was only made 
recently but that Members would have time to consider the 
business case before the Council meeting at the end of 
July. 

 
The Panel agreed that more time was needed to look at the 
business case and member input was vital and the potential 
interim Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service needed to be 
involved in those conversations. 
 
Key areas for discussion to include: 

• New Structure 

• Memorandum of Agreement – how partnership is governed 

• Business Case 
 
DECISION: 
 
It is suggested that a further recommendation be made to the Full 
Council, the recommendation being: 
 
‘That a Joint PDP/PMP Working Group be established to review 
the proposed report and associated documentation in advance of 
the business case decision for the next Council decision.  
 

• The associated documentation to include the Business 
Case, Memorandum of Agreement and proposed structure 
for consultation. 

• The Working Group to include the Chairman and Vice 
Chairman of PDP and PMP and the remaining members to 
be appointed from the membership of the above Panels 

Page 24



- 7 - 
 
JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 29 June 2021 

 

 

and to reflect where possible the political balance of the 
Council. 

• A series of topic briefings will be prepared by officers for 
the Working Group’s considerations.  

• The Joint PDP/PMP Working Group to provide a report and 
recommendations directly back to the Council on its 
findings as part of the next report to the Council. 

• The final version of the report will be for the Chairman and 
Vice Chairman of the Working Group to agree following 
Member opportunity to provide feedback.’ 

   

4. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT  

 

  

 There were none.  

   

 
 
 
(The meeting ended at Time Not Specified) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
  INITS 

  INITS 

 (a)  INITS 

  INITS 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



- 8 - 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL AND 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in the Marquee Suite, Springfields Events & 
Conference Centre, Camelgate, Spalding, PE12 6ET, on Thursday, 22 July 2021 at 
6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
A R Woolf (Chairman) 

 
 

 

B Alcock 
F Biggadike 
M D Booth 
C J T H Brewis 
 

T A Carter 
R A Gibson 
J D McLean 
N H Pepper 
 

J L Reynolds 
G P Scalese 
S C Walsh 
D J Wilkinson 
 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors J R Astill, 
J Avery, A C Beal, A C Cronin, M Hasan, J L King, P A Redgate, G T D Rudkin, S-
A Slade, A C Tennant and J Tyrrell  
 
In Attendance:  The Strategic Advisor and the Democratic Services Manager  
 
 
 Action By 

5. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   

  

 Councillor Woolf was elected as Chairman.  

   

6. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

  

 There were no declarations of interest.  

   

7. SOUTH EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP   

  

 The Strategic Advisor (SA) introduced the report and advised that 

he would go through the Business Case, Structure and 

Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) in order, taking questions 

following a brief introduction of each.  The questions/key points 

raised and answers provided were as follows: 

 

Business Case: 

• Concern was raised about joining a ‘ready-made’ 

partnership/alliance and nervousness was expressed 

regarding being ‘left behind’ as a lot of joint work had already 

been started – where would this leave South Holland staff? 

o The SA advised that lots of opportunities were still 

available and already a baseline had been set with 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 2c)



- 9 - 
 
JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 22 July 2021 

 

 

PSPS working across the three authorities. 

o The business case identified a number of opportunities 

for the partnership, subject to further Member decision 

and scrutiny. 

o Progress had been made by the Strategic Alliance 

which was a positive indication of the partnership.  

• A serious look at leisure and market provision within the 

district was requested by members with reassurances that this 

work would move quickly. 

o The SA confirmed that each Council would have an 

Annual Delivery Plan setting out clear priorities and 

timescales and this would go to each respective 

authority’s Annual Council meeting for approval. 

o Some early opportunities had already been identified in 

the work ELDC had been leading which would be 

advantageous for SHDC, this would be shared with 

Members. 

• Concern was raised as to whether there would be sufficient 

resilience to be able to finalise three sets of draft accounts in a 

timely manner.  

o The Deputy S151 officer advised that PSPS, as a 

provider, were still bedding into Boston and East 

Lindsey and acknowledged the fact that South Holland 

was still waiting for the draft financial statements, the 

deadline of which was the coming Friday.  

• How would cross border refuse collections work – would South 

Holland continue to use bags?   

o The SA confirmed that there was nothing contained 

within the document for transformation and change and 

nothing setting out changes to services.  There was no 

reason why bags would change.   

o The Environment Bill would have a cost impact so 

where there were opportunities over three councils it 

would make sense to look at them. 

o Opportunities could exist for depots, fleet maintenance 

and where the partnership councils shared a border. 

 

Page 28



- 10 - 
 
JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 22 July 2021 

 

 

• Would South Holland’s meeting rooms be set up for agile 

working. 

o The SA advised that agile working still needed to be 

worked through. There was a need to consider the most 

effective way to use technology.  It was important that 

the senior team was able to operate in an agile way 

across the partnership in support of Members and local 

communities. 

• On Page 93 it talked about investment in resources – what 

conversations have already taken place? 

o The SA confirmed, with regard to investment in 

systems, that PSPS had an existing transformation 

plan to get the three councils on all the same 

systems – this would be a huge advantage. This 

decision would come back to members for a decision 

on the way forward.   

o The reason why a ‘whole approach’ was asked for 

was that it provided the biggest benefit and 

opportunity for value for money 

• On Page 31 of the Business Plan it was requested that more 

towns were included as opposed to just Spalding and 

Holbeach and on Page 89 it mentioned both scrutiny panels 

but it was requested that this include Governance and Audit 

also – this was noted and agreed. 

 

Structure 

The SA advised that there was resilience in the structure and 18 

officers would be available to the partnership.  The structure 

showed a scale of ambition that would be able to influence 

attracting additional resources into the area.  The structure 

provided sound financial management and corporate governance. 

• Members asked for assurances that there would be a 

willingness to amend and review the structure and that the 

authority shouldn’t be bound to it.  The district council should 

be fully manned and fully delivering.  The morale of the staff 

was questioned along with a request for reassurance that work 

would be undertaken to improve it – it was hoped that 

performance and delivery would also improve as a result. 

o The SA responded that the staff affected had come 

Page 29



- 11 - 
 
JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 22 July 2021 

 

 

together as a team and they already had worked 

together previously.  He confirmed that the structure 

was a proposed structure which has been designed to 

support the Members ambitions  It was a good first 

attempt, but it needed to be tested by going live.  It 

provided the opportunity for a ‘safe landing space’ for 

each of the senior management team.  There would be 

no redundancies – it was important for those officers 

who came from Breckland to land safely.   

o Any structure must be able to deliver the political 

priorities, ambitions and outcomes for each council and 

therefore the structure would always be capable of 

refinement and change.  

• Assurance was sought that there would be a senior officer in 

South Holland. 

o The SA confirmed that it had been 10 months since the 

previous CEX had left the authority and it had been 

quite a long and unsettled period.  The authority was 

also one Executive Director down.  Christine Marshall 

had covered all 3 roles.  Rob Barlow was a resident of 

South Holland.   

o It was proposed that Christine Marshall would be the 

Deputy Chief Executive and S151 Officer and Mark 

Stinson would be the Monitoring Officer.  Therefore the 

3 most senior staff would either be South Holland staff 

or South Holland residents which put the authority in a 

strong position.   

o The SA confirmed that there would be 4 DCEX’s – one 

at each authority and one to support the other 3.   

o Delegations to the DCEX need to be considered for 

each authority. 

• Confirmation was requested as to whether the position of the 

4th DCEX was currently vacant and whether all three 

authorities would be included in the selection process.  

Concern was raised as the ‘Place’ element felt light and 

surprise that this had not been included in Community 

Leadership.   There did not appear to be a lot in the Delivery 

team but only 2 Assistant Directors in Growth – it felt 

unbalanced, and it was difficult to judge until more information 

was available   

Page 30



- 12 - 
 
JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 22 July 2021 

 

 

o The SA advised that within the Growth Portfolio was 

more responsibility for the core services – there was a 

need to ensure specific officers would work on delivery 

and not get mixed up in other work. This mirror the 

current roles within the SHDC structure but at a larger 

scale.  

o The MO confirmed that the appointment process would 

be through a member appointment Panel with 2 

members from each of the three councils.  He 

confirmed that there was still work to do with these 

bodies and changes to the constitutions would be 

required.  However, it was anticipated that most if not 

all current officers would be matched to a suitable post 

and be slotted in. Where there wasn’t a slot-in, and for 

future appointments to the shared management team, 

these would be member appointments. 

• Members raised the need to build a greater partnership with 

Internal Drainage Boards more.  If growth and more house 

building was required, then the government should be lobbied 

to use IDB’s. 

o The SA advised that the partnership would cover 40% 

of Lincolnshire and this provided the opportunity for a 

different seat at the table.  There was now the 

opportunity to make and influence changes. 

• Members asked whether all staff had been informed and 

queried how the more junior staff felt about it? 

o The SA confirmed that they were not proposing sharing 

any more staff other than senior staff at this stage.   

o All existing Heads of Service/Managers would remain 

based in their existing authority.  He confirmed that at 

this stage nothing would change, and staff were aware 

through a series of regular updates from the Leader 

and Senior Staff. 

• Members requested a better system on keeping them involved 

and queried how communication would work with all political 

parties. 

o The SA advised that the Memorandum of Agreement 

listed how this would work.  He added that scrutiny 

should work together but confirmed that he was not 

necessarily recommending joint scrutiny and individual 

Page 31



- 13 - 
 
JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 22 July 2021 

 

 

scrutiny and local ways would dominate.   

o The SA noted that CEX briefings with opposition parties 

was an extremely useful exercise and helped to prevent 

a lot of misunderstandings by involving and informing. 

 

Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 

The Monitoring Officer introduced the MOA and informed all 

present that it was the same agreement that had been in place 

with Breckland.  There still needed to be an external review of the 

Agreement but he was comfortable that it was a robust document.   

• Members questioned whether, as in 8.3 of the MOA, 12 

months was sufficient notice to leave the partnership. 

o The MO advised that it had been 6 months with 

Breckland and an earlier draft of this Agreement had 

been 24 months. 12 months was considered reasonable 

– 24 months was certainly a very long notice period. 

• Members questioned the sharing of costs as detailed in 13.1. 

o The MO advised that this had been the case with the 

Breckland partnership. 

The SA thanked all present for the open and transparent 

discussion.  He advised all present that external views were still 

being sought to ensure the document was robust prior to sign off. 

   

8. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT  

 

  

 There were none.  

   

 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 8.23 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
 

Page 32



 
1 

 

 

    

KEY DECISION PLAN 
 

Issued – 19 Aug 2021 

  

 

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to:  

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months 
 
The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.   
 
Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.” 
 
Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies) 
 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 7

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
2 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Communities 
& Facilities 
 
COVID 
Implications of 
the South 
Holland Centre 
Operations 
 

To consider the grant funding awarded 
to South Holland Centre in the second 
round of the Cultural Recovery Fund 
from DCMS via Arts Council England 
 

 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Holder for 
Communities & Facilities, 
or Leader 
 
Before 31 Aug 2021 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
Property 
acquisition to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery (A) 
 

Acquisition of a second hand property. 
 

 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Before 31 Aug 2021 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
Property 
acquisition to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery (B) 
 

Acquisition of a property 
 

 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Before 31 Aug 2021 
 

P
age 34



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
3 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
Property 
acquisition to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery (C) 
 

Acquisition of property. 
 

 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Before 31 Aug 2021 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
Property 
acquisition to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery (D) 
 

Acquisition of property 
 

 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Before 31 Aug 2021 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
Property 
acquisition to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery (E) 
 

Acquisition of property 
 

 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Before 31 Aug 2021 
 

P
age 35



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
4 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
Property 
acquisition to 
support Housing 
Options service 
delivery (F) 
 

Acquisition of property 
 

 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader  
 
Before 31 Aug 2021 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Communities 
& Facilities 
 
Covid 
implications for 
the leisure 
operating 
contract July - 
September 2021 
 

To consider financial support to the 
leisure operator for the period July to 
September 2021 
 

 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Holder for 
Communities & Facilities, 
or Leader  
 
Before 31 Aug 2021 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
 
Fire door and 
Compliance 
contract 
 

Fire door replacement and associated 
fire compliance works to sheltered 
schemes 
 

 
 
 
 

 Assistant Director 
Housing, or any other 
officer with delegation 
 
Before 31 Aug 2021 
 

P
age 36



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
5 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for 
Environmental 
Services 
 
HGV Driver 
Shortage 
 

To provide an update on the current 
HGV driver shortage and to seek 
approval to implement new working 
arrangements to support improvement 
of this situation. 
 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 7 Sep 2021, or 
Leader 
 
South Holland District 
Council 22 Sep 2021 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Communities 
& Facilities 
 
COVID 
Implications on 
the leisure 
operating 
contract 
 

To set out the contractual position and 
a range of potential options for 
consideration for the Leisure 
Management contract 

 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 26 Oct 2021, or 
Leader 
 
South Holland District 
Council 24 Nov 2021 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
 
HRA 
Development 
Framework 
 

To agree a framework for future HRA 
housing development investment 
decisions. 

 

 
 
 
 

 Cabinet 26 Oct 2021, or 
Leader 
 
South Holland District 
Council 24 Nov 2021 
 

 
 
 

P
age 37



 
6 

 

*Cabinet Membership 

The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader) 
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor P E Coupland (Deputy Leader) 
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor H Drury (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Grocock (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor E J Sneath (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder) 
 
 

 
If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact: 

 
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

P
age 38

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Matthew Hogan, Acting Executive Director 

 

To: Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday, 8 September 2021  

 

(Author: Nigel Burch Economic Development and Inward Investment Manager) 

 

Subject PMP Economic Development/Inward Investment update 

 

Purpose: To provide an update to Performance Monitoring Panel on current work being 

undertaken to support the South Holland economy. 

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That the panel give consideration to the report 

 

 

1.0 Executive Summary 

 

1.1 Since the last report to PMP in January, the team have continued to concentrate on the 

delivery of the Governments Covid 19 business grants, namely the Local Restrictions 

Support Grants, the Open but Impacted discretionary grant programme and the Restart 

Grant. These schemes have now drawn to a close with a total of 5544 payments totalling 

£30,519,323 having been distributed to South Holland businesses since the start of the first 

lockdown in March 2020. 

 

1.2 In November 2020, South Holland District Council was allocated £2,774,439 in Additional 

Restrictions Grant Funding. The Governments stated intent is that this funding, which is a 

finite and one-off budgetary payment, is to provide local authorities with a budget to 

administer discretionary funding to aide their economy with the response to, and recovery 

from, the impact of Covid-19. The Government has made it clear that local authorities are 

to spend the money by March 31st 2022, and that all monies unspent by that date will need 

to be returned. 

 

1.3 To date, the Council’s approach to the use of Additional Restrictions Grant Funding has 

been to provide discretionary support to businesses within South Holland which, despite 

not being mandated themselves to close by law, have been adversely affected by the 

restrictions. The Council has also used the funds to support a small number of businesses 

mandated to close their premises by law, but who did not qualify for the main government 

grant schemes by virtue of not being linked to a hereditament on the local business rates 

list. 

 

1.4 Currently, £1.4m of this funding (50% of available funds) has been committed to supporting 

businesses in the circumstances listed above, leaving a remaining balance of £1.37m to 

invest before March 31st 2022. 

 

1.5 As a result, the Council have taken a proactive approach to the distribution of these 

remaining funds in order to support local businesses and have developed the Recovery 

and Growth Fund. This scheme went live on the 4th August and is designed to help support 

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



businesses who can demonstrate they have the potential for growth, thus contributing to 

the economic recovery and growth of their business and local economy. 

 

1.6 Three levels of grant are available, £1,000 - £4,999 with the business funding 20%, £5,000 

to £9,999 with the business funding 30%, and £10,000 to £24,999 with the business 

funding 40%. The applications will be assessed using the tried and tested method used in 

the Grants4growth scheme, and we anticipate the window for applications will stay open 

until the end of 2021 with all monies needing to be defrayed by the end of March 2022. 

 

1.7 As restrictions have started to ease, face to face visits with businesses have started again, 

albeit at not the same levels as before, however, communication is still being maintained 

with all our major contacts, and where appropriate, business intelligence is being fed back 

to relevant stakeholders and partners. 

 

1.8 Construction of the first of the University buildings on the FEZ is now complete and has 

been officially handed over to the University, construction has begun on the second 

building which has been designated the hub building, and construction of the 3rd, the 

robotics and automation building, will follow on. SHDC officers continue to be at the centre 

of the work to deliver and promote these buildings, and the interest levels remain high. 

 

1.9 The ERDF funded Grants4growth programme has continued to perform throughout the 

whole of the pandemic period and is still on track to deliver all of its contracted outputs on 

time and within budget. The project still awaits the go-ahead for a further year’s extension 

to take the it through to June 2023. 

 

1.10 Since the last update, Inward Investment activity has been centred mostly around the Food 

Enterprise Zone at Holbeach, working in conjunction with the County Council and the 

agents, Pygott and Crone. All of the plots on Phase 1 are already reserved or under offer, 

there is considerable interest in Phase 2 and we are already getting enquiries for office 

space both physical and virtual in the hub building. 

 

1.11 The Inward investment team are taking an active role in the business and economy 

element of the town centre work, we are assisting 2 town centre businesses, and working 

closely with Boston College Spalding to promote their newly opened digital hub which will 

give town centre businesses the opportunity to enhance the digital aspects of their 

businesses. The team are also engaged with the Town Centre Steering Group and the 

Economy and Skills subgroup to ensure that businesses both from the town centres and 

also the wider area benefit from and contribute to the aims of the project. 

 

1.12 We continue to work with a number of local businesses with expansion plans, and are also 

engaged with the DIT and the Inward Investment team at LCC and the GLEPP on a variety 

of Inward Investment enquiries. 

 

2.0 Background 

 

2.1 The Economic Development and Inward Investment service at South Holland District 

Council plays a key role in contributing to and assisting in the delivery of the Council’s 

Corporate Plan by helping to support the local economy utilising a number of different work 

strands. The overall objective for the service is to maximise opportunities within the local 

economy for the creation of jobs, in particular those of higher value utilising skills that are 

need now to help local businesses transition towards higher productivity using automation 

Page 40



and robotics and other higher tech solutions, whilst retaining a readily available workforce 

to service the inevitable seasonality of the agriculture/horticulture/food manufacturing 

economy. The Inward Investment element aims to support existing businesses to expand, 

and attract new businesses into the district, thus strengthening the supply chain and 

growing business rate income. 

 

2.2 The purpose of this report is to provide members with a further update on the continuing 

work streams carried out by the team 

 

3.0 COVID RESPONSE 

 

3.1 The team have continued to oversee the allocation and distribution of the various 

Government Covid Grants that have been released since the start of lockdown. Working 

closely with the rates and finance teams from PSPS and some staff redeployed from other 

areas of the Council, 5544 payments totalling £30,519,323 has been made to South 

Holland businesses during this period. 

 

3.2 Emphasis is now moving to the remaining Additional Restrictions Grant funds with the 

launch of the South Holland Recovery and Growth Fund launching on the 4th August and in 

the first two weeks received 40 applications which will be verified and assessed using the 

same methodology that we use for Grants4growth applicants. 

 

3.3  Universal Credit numbers are increasing, latest figures to the end of November 2020 report 

7513 people in South Holland claiming Universal credit, the latest figures for June 2021 

show an increase to 7811. These month on month rises are down to a number of elements, 

partly due to Universal Credit being rolled out to more people in the district, some people 

on furlough also go onto UC as the 80% furlough payment which latterly dropped to 60%, 

puts them into the threshold zone particularly where there a number of children in the family 

unit, and some self-employed people whose businesses had not been able to trade 

because either their supplier or customer, or both, had been mandated to close. 

 

3.4 Work continues with the GLLEP and DWP to promote the County wide online jobs fairs, 

and we are closely engaged with Boston College and the University of Lincoln to promote 

any schemes that come forward to get people, especially younger people into work or onto 

apprenticeship or similar opportunities. 

 

3.5 As the Governments furlough scheme draws to a close by the end of September, this may 

present a challenge to some businesses that have been relying on this support, we will 

continue to monitor and look to utilise Government support grants to assist if needed. 

 

4.0 Business Engagement 

 

4.1 As Covid restrictions have started to lift, a limited number of Covid safe visits have taken 

place. These visits have mostly been at the request of the businesses involved, and have 

usually been to discuss future expansion plans although increasingly businesses are 

becoming very concerned about the lack of staff at all levels, we estimate that there could 

be  well over 1000 vacancies in South Holland at the present time.  

 

4.2 Conversations that take place with businesses and colleagues at the Department for Work 

and Pensions are allowing us to understand how bigger businesses continue to be affected 

by, and responding to, the pressures they are under. In general, we are not seeing large 

Page 41



numbers of redundancies at the moment, due partly to the extension of the furlough 

scheme, and also to the nature of the bigger businesses, the food manufacturing industry in 

particular has retained the need for personnel and seem to only be furloughing those who 

are extremely clinically vulnerable, in fact the bigger problem at the moment is people being 

absent through self-isolation. 

 

4.3 Representations are being made at all levels to highlight this problem, the well-publicised 

issue around the national shortage of HGV drivers is causing a great deal of concern in 

South Holland.  

 

4.4 The wider impact of staff shortages is also being monitored and we are working with the 

Business Lincolnshire Agricultural and Horticultural Business Advisor, as well as the Fresh 

Produce Network to try to find potential alternative solutions to the problem. 

 

5.0 Key Employment Sites  

 

 Food Enterprise Zone Holbeach 

 

5.1 The Construction of the University’s Centre of Excellence is now complete and the building 

has been officially handed over to the University. It will become fully occupied as the new 

term starts in the autumn of this year. 

  

5.2 The plans for the second building, designated the hub building, were approved on the 8th 

March and ground works started soon after, at the time of writing this report in late August, 

most of the steelwork for this building is in place. The hub will be a mix of work units, office 

space and flexible meeting zones, and interest is already being shown by potential clients, 

one of whom is an overseas client who sees this as their first step in establishing a 

presence in the UK. 

 

5.3 On the 17th March a one hour virtual event featuring a range of speakers was held to ‘soft 

launch’ and promote the FEZ, and was attended by over 400 people, with 35 firm enquires 

being fielded as a result of the event, six of which were land/property investment enquiries. 

All enquiries are being handled by the agents Pygott  and Crone. 

 

5.4 On the 31st March, the joint purchase of the 28 acre phase 2 land by SHDC and LCC was 

completed, The objective of this joint purchase is threefold, firstly, to give confidence to the 

market concerning the deliverability of the FEZ in its entirety as planned, including 

providing confidence to investors in phase 1 that the project can achieve the critical mass 

to support the development of an agri-food cluster through the delivery of phase 2. 

Secondly, to ensure that the partners involved in the delivery of the FEZ retain control 

through ownership over the long term delivery of the phase 2 land. 

 

5.5  The third objective, specific to the Council, has been to position both South Holland District 

Council and Lincolnshire County Council as partners of equal influence in respect of site 

ownership and control. A masterplan is currently being worked up to guide future 

development. Interest is already being shown in this land with a number of meetings having 

been held with a number of prospective clients. 

 

 Allocated Employment Land 

 

Page 42



5.6 We continue to promote the two main parcels of allocated employment land in the district, 

the Elsoms/Keeling land on Wardentree lane, and the Ashwood Homes owned Clay Lake 

site, to potential inward investors and local businesses looking for expansion options. We 

maintain regular contact with the agents and/or owners of these sites and forward enquiries 

to them when appropriate. Despite the difficulties experienced over the last 16 months, one 

of the agents is reporting continued interest and is cautiously optimistic for the coming year. 

5.7 A number of planning application have come in over the last six months which are now 

resulting in some further developments at both Wardentree Lane and the Gateway site. 

6.0 Inward Investment 

 

6.1 We continue to respond to inward investment enquiries, some of which come into the 

GLLEP from the DIT and are then forwarded to us to see if there are any sites in South 

Holland that match the criteria put forward by the client. Where appropriate, we respond 

with a suggested site and it is then up to the original enquirer as to whether or not they wish 

to pursue further. In the instances where they do, we work with the agent for the land, the 

Inward Investment team at the GLLEP/LCC, and the DIT to provide all the information that 

is requested. This can be a very protracted process with no guarantee of an end result, one 

such enquiry recently ended with the company deciding not to invest in the UK but to go to 

the USA instead, but we currently have two other enquiries that are ‘live’ and we await 

further communication from the DIT as to whether the companies wish to move to the next 

stage. 

 

6.2 The team continue to engage with a number of businesses both within and outside the 

district to identify suitable sites to support their expansion, working closely with the planning 

team to deliver a joined up, business friendly approach. We are working with a number of 

South Holland Businesses looking to expand, and some who are potential inward investors, 

with particular interest in the land at the FEZ with interest being shown at the time of writing 

by 2 South Holland businesses, and 16 potential inward investors.  

  

6.3 We have been able to assist MidWest Polychem, a plastics recycling business that have 

moved from Hull to a site on the A17 at Holbeach where they have invested circa £14m into 

the site and have already taken on around 30 local employees with another 30 or so 

planned once full production commences once planning permission is gained from the 

County Council. We are engaged with two local businesses who have ambitious expansion 

plans that are currently still in the early formulation stages, but we expect planning 

applications from both of them before the end of this year. We have also been able to work 

with colleagues in the licensing team to allow a smooth transition of a Boston based 

business into a unit at the National Centre for Food Manufacturing at Holbeach. 

 

6.4 Following the establishment of Lincolnshire as a High Potential Opportunity in automation 

and robotics in the food manufacturing sector, a Greater Lincs Agrifood Investment 

Opportunity proposition has been created and introduced to all the DIT agents globally, this 

proposition promotes the County and its food and horticulture expertise to interested parties 

anywhere in the world, and is an important tool in the promotion of South Holland to inward 

investors. 

 

6.5 Although we have not yet been able to establish a contact within the business, it is good to 

see that David Wood Bakery have taken over the old Spalding Bakery site and are 

currently advertising for staff to join. We have also worked with Lightspeed Broadband, who 

Page 43



are engaged in rolling out gigabit fibre broadband to Spalding and the surrounding area, to 

help them to secure Fulney Hall in Spalding as their UK head office. 

 

6.6 We are also aware of 10 exciting business expansions, most of whom operate in the 

agrifood/agritech sector, that are still commercially confidential at this time, but we are 

offering advice and support as required.  

 

7.0 Skills 

 

7.1 The skills agenda continues to be at the forefront of work being done at both a local and 

County level. Whilst the Economic Action Plan underpins what we do, the more immediate 

plan that all Lincolnshire districts are working towards is that of Economic recovery, and 

skills and re-skilling are a big part of this strategy.  

 

7.2 In September 2020 the Government introduced the Kickstart scheme which is designed to 

provide funding for employers to create job placements for 16 to 24 year olds who are on 

Universal Credit. This scheme allows employers to apply for funding that will cover 100% of 

the National Minimum Wage, for 25 hours a week for a total of 6 months, and the start of 

the placement can be extended to the end of December 2021. 

 

7.3 Announced at the spending review in November 2020, DWP have created the Restart 

scheme to help Universal Credit claimants back to work, and in the East Midlands delivery 

of this scheme has been given to Jobs 22. Working directly with employers, Jobs 22 will 

ensure candidates are upskilled and pre-qualified for genuine, sustainable positions with 

targeted organisations and corporations at no cost to either party. 

 

7.4 The Enterprise Advisor Network that is being delivered by the GLLEP continues to offer 

information and advice about the world of work and increase the number of encounters with 

employers, for young people (years 7 – 13) This is done by matching schools and colleges 

to an employer, known as an enterprise advisor, who will work with the leadership team 

and the career leader in the school to develop new, or improved, career and enterprise 

plans. In South Holland, 6 schools are eligible for this scheme, 4 are engaged, and 

currently 3 are matched to a business. It is hoped that as restrictions ease, this number will 

increase. 

 

7.5 We are also working with Boston College to inform their curriculum plans to ensure it 

delivers what is needed by local businesses and learners, and are helping to promote the 

newly opened digital hub at the Spalding Campus which will deliver digital skills to 

businesses and the public alike. 

 

8.0 Grants4growth 

 

8.1 Since the last report, and despite the pandemic continuing to affect the local and national 

economy, and with core members of the G4G team still heavily involved in assisting with 

the Covid grant delivery, G4G still continues to perform well against targets and budget. In 

the 6 months to end of June 2021, £364,371 worth of grants were awarded to 39 

businesses, creating 6 jobs and injecting £752,225 worth of private sector investment into 

the Lincolnshire economy. 

 

Page 44



8.2 We still await confirmation from MHCLG on the extension of the project to June 2023 but 

remain optimistic that the decision is imminent now that covid related workloads are 

hopefully starting to ease.  

 

9.0       Strategic Engagement 

 

9.1 Unlike business meetings which are slowly starting to return to face to face, meetings with 

strategic partners are still, in the main, taking place virtually, we have, since we last came 

before the panel, met on numerous occasions with colleagues from the DIT, the GLEPP, 

MHCLG, LCC, Business Lincolnshire, WPD, Chamber of Commerce, Lincolnshire Tourism, 

FSB, DWP, Boston College, University of Lincoln, as well as a number of planning agents 

working on behalf of businesses who are potentially interested in the district. 

 

9.2 Working with colleagues at the Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership, the DIT, 

the University of Lincoln and the Inward Investment Team at the County Council, the UK 

Food Valley programme is now established with the ambition of positioning Lincolnshire’s 

UK leading food sector as a Top 10 Global Food Cluster. Encompassing the agrifood 

sector within Lincolnshire, but centred around South Holland, and the Food Enterprise 

Zone in particular, the key priorities of the UK Food Valley are to: 

 

➢ Accelerate food chain automation and digital technology adoption to deliver 

productivity growth and high value jobs 

➢ Deliver low carbon food chains from farm to fork by focusing on low carbon 

technologies for production, processing and distribution 

➢ Developing the market potential of naturally healthy and nutritious foods, as well as 

new sources of protein such as fish, vegetables, salads, fruit pulses and lean meat 

in which Greater Lincolnshire specialises. 

 

9.3 The concept of Food Valleys exist in a multitude of locations across the world, they are 

regions that are internationally recognised and marketed as the best places in that country 

or region to set up food related businesses. The ambition that sits behind the UK Food 

Valley project is to develop a long term plan that will establish Lincolnshire as the UK 

equivalent of other internationally recognised Food Valley’s. 

 

9.4 The term ‘valley’ is this context is a play on Silicon Valley, and the term ‘food valley’ is one 

that is well recognised within the global food sector. It is not designed in any way to reflect 

the physical geography of the place. 

 

9.5 As a precursor to the launch next year of the UK Shared Prosperity fund which will seek to 

replace European Funding now that the UK has left the European Union, the Government 

have announced the UK Community Renewal fund, £220m worth of funds for 2021/2022, 

designed to help support local areas to pilot imaginative new approaches and programmes 

that unleash their potential, instil pride and prepare for the UK Shared Prosperity Fund 

when it launches in 2022. 

 

9.6 South Holland District Council has worked with the Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise 

Partnership and the University to submit a bid for £1.7m for the agri-food sector to provide: 

 

➢ Business and technical support for 120 businesses, small medium and large 

➢ An agri-food business grants programme to support digitalisation, low carbon 

adoption, and investment in equipment for 64 businesses 

Page 45



➢ A Skill Development Programme for those who are unemployed and new to the 

food sector to provide food sector skills 

➢ Funding to support the University of Lincoln to support businesses to take forward 

innovative projects 

The bid was submitted on the 18th June and an outcome anticipated by the end of this year. 

 

9.7 The Government have also announced the creation of the Levelling up Fund to invest in 

local infrastructure projects that will have a visible impact on people and their communities. 

 This fund represents a new approach to local investment that will end the silo approach 

which has made it difficult for Whitehall to take a holistic approach to the infrastructure 

needs of local areas. A £19m Levelling-Up Fund bid has been developed and submitted by 

the County Council in partnership with SHDC making the case on behalf of many 

businesses, for improvements to the A16 to include: 

 

➢ Remodelling of Springfields and the Greencell Roundabouts to support improved 

traffic flows 

➢ How the investment will support the productivity of our local economy, given the 

reliance on freight and logistics, and framed around the UK Food Valley ambitions 

The bid was submitted on the 18th June and an outcome anticipated by the end of the 

year. 

 

9.8 We have been, and continue to, gather intelligence to feed back to government via the 

GLLEP on matters of strategic importance such as issues around staff shortages, 

particularly in the logistics and horticultural sector, issues that are flagged up to us around, 

as an example, traffic delays at pinch points which have a significant effect on our local 

haulage businesses, and recently, providing advice and guidance to businesses that have 

had to close temporarily due to a member of staff testing positive which has meant the 

whole team have had to self-isolate.  

  

10.0 Options 

 

10.1 That the report be noted for consideration 

 

11.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

11.1 That the report is noted for consideration, so as to inform PMP on activity to support the 

economy and invite any questions, thoughts and proposals from the panel 

 

12.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

 

12.1 The Inward Investment Team provide a key role in helping to support and grow the local 

economy by providing a valuable link between business, the Council, developers, funders, 

training and education providers and other stakeholders, and by delivering the flagship 

Grants4growth capital funding project which is now recognised as a business friendly 

project serving the whole of Lincolnshire. 

 

12.2 It also provides detailed knowledge and personal contact with business leaders in many 

local businesses both large and small, and plays a wider role in making sure that South 

Holland’s voice is heard at County and GLLEP level to ensure that the Council has 

influence in decisions around funding, skills, communications etc. 

 

Page 46



13.0 IMPLICATIONS 

 

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 

decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  

Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; 

Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk 

Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; 

Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be 

implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 

 

14.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

 

14.1 This report encompasses all wards in South Holland 

 

15.0 ACRONYMS 

 

15.1 ARG  Additional Restrictions Grant 

15.2 DWP  Department for Work and Pensions 

15.3 DIT  Department for International Trade 

15.4 FEZ  Food Enterprise Zone 

15.5 FSB  Federation of Small Businesses 

15.6 G4G  Grants4growth 

15.7 GLLEP  Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership 

15.8 LCC  Lincolnshire County Council 

15.9 MHCLG Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government  

15.10 WPD  Western Power Distribution 

 

Background papers:-  

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Nigel Burch, Economic Development and Inward Investment 

Manager 

Telephone Number 07967 807495 

Email: nburch@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: N  

 

Exempt Decision: N  

 

This report refers to a Discretionary Service  

 

 

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Portfolio Holder for Peoples, Places & Corporate, Councillor Nick Worth  

 

To: Performance Monitoring Panel, Wednesday 8th September 2021 

Cabinet, 26th October 2021  

 

Authors: Corey Gooch, Senior Change and Performance Partner and Matthew Hogan, 

Assistant Director, Strategic Growth 

 

Subject Q4 Performance Report 20/21 

 

Purpose: To provide an update on how the Council is performing for the period            

1st January 2021 to 31st March 2021 

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That Performance Monitoring Panel note the contents of the report  

 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 The report seeks to provide Performance Monitoring Panel with an overview of a number of 

key performance indicators for the council. The report concerns the period of Quarter 4 

2020-21 (January 2021 until March 2021). 

 

1.2 The Quarter 4 2020-21 Performance Report detailed in Appendix A aims to provide 

members, businesses and residents with an overview of how the Council is performing 

against a number of key strategic indicators in an ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. The 

reported indicators will provide an indication of performance and business intelligence as 

compared to the previous year to highlight how key services have performed whilst the 

organisation has continued to respond to the challenges and pressures that the pandemic 

has presented to both the organisation and the district as a whole.   

 

1.3 As highlighted previously, members will note that the report does not contain a suite of 

performance indicators to the same scale and breadth as presented to the previously Panel 

in previous years. This is because, in many cases, the focus of many council services and 

their attendant resources has shifted away from pre-March 2020 ‘business as usual activity’ 

and are instead now focused on a different range of areas directly aligned to supporting the 

council with its pandemic response.   

 

1.4 Consequently, the report seeks to provide a summary of performance in key areas which 

reflect the current performance of the council in a number of critical areas, whilst the 

organisation remains focused on supporting its communities, residents and local business 

in extra-ordinary times. The narrative within the report seeks to provide supplementary 

commentary to support the data. Several service managers will be in attendance at the 

Performance Monitoring Panel, and will be able to assist with any supplementary questions 

that the information within this report does not answer.  

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 11



2.0 KEY PERFORMANCE AND BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE INDICATORS 

 

2.1 The Council continues to adapt to how it has delivered its services since the start of the 

Covid-19 Pandemic both in terms of moving towards a more agile and remote based way of 

working, as well as responding to those most in need whether it be vulnerability or local 

businesses within the economy. 

 

2.2 Q4 saw one of the highest volume of calls into the service since Q2 2018, with 22,017 calls 

for the quarter. Despite a predicted spike in calls due to elections, the customer contact 

team has achieved an answer rate of just over 90%, improving on last year’s Q4 rate of 

87.4%. Additionally call duration in has increased by 60 seconds compared to the same 

period in 2020 (4 min 41 secs). These rises in volumes and call durations are linked to the 

easing of lockdown restrictions as they affect residents. Furthermore, following the budget 

and plans from the Government for the "Roadmap out of Lockdown", the customer service 

team have been actively supporting and signposting customers whilst continuing to focus 

on providing digital solutions in addition to traditional contact channels. Our customers are 

continuing to use email/web forms as a key form of contact, this quarter we saw a 56% 

increase (3486 emails) compared to the same period in 2020 (1402 emails).  Emails are 

prioritised daily to maintain this positive change in customer habits and we have seen an 

89% increase in 2020-21, receiving 12497 emails compared to the 2019-20 (6601).  

 

2.3 With regards to communication with residents, Comparison between Q3 20/21 and Q4 

20/21 does show a reduction in both social media and website activity in this time. This has 

been reflective since the peak of COVID messaging back in Q1 20/21 and is a nationwide 

trend as audiences begin to experience fatigue with transactional, ongoing coronavirus 

messaging, whilst there is also a notable reduction in new COVID-based opportunities or 

messaging to share with residents and businesses compared to previous quarters.    

 

2.4 During the month of February and early March we suffered from the severely bad weather 

with snow and ice, during the period the temperature was significantly low which had an 

effect with ice being around for a longer period of time up to 2/3 weeks and this increased 

the amount of missed collections due to the crews only being able to access certain roads. 

As a result Q4 has seen an increase into the number of missed waste collections, however 

when considering 61 per 100,000 missed collections equating to 623 in total for the quarter 

against just under 1 million total collections throughout the district (999,144 successful 

collections) in Q4 this number is minimal. 

 

2.5 In terms of economy and employment, as of February 2021 when the latest DWP figures 

were published we have seen a drop of 3,258 residents in the district on Universal credit, it 

is felt these changes reflect the increase in demand over the Christmas period for staff in 

both the food and flower sectors who hit their main peaks at this time. 

 

2.6 The attached Appendix A, includes further data around housing, housing development, 

public protection, tax and benefits as well as community related indicators with supporting 

supplementary commentary alongside. Officers in attendance will be happy to take 

questions from the panel where further explanation and discussion if needed. 

 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

3.1 That the contents of this report be noted 

Page 50



 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

 

4.1 That the council’s performance is properly scrutinised 

 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

 

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 

decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  

Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; 

Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk 

Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; 

Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be 

implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 

 

5.1 Constitutional & Legal 

 

5.1.1    The report is made within the terms of reference of the Performance Monitoring Panel. 
 

5.2       Crime and Disorder 

 

5.2.1    The report contains indicators which does convey some information relating to crime and 

disorder. 

 

5.3 Financial 

 

5.3.1    The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some 

information relating to financial matters. 

 

5.4 Health & Wellbeing 

 

5.4.1    The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some 

information relating to health and wellbeing. 

 

5.5 Reputation 

 

5.5.1    Performance issues can cause some reputational consequence. It is the purpose of this 

report to highlight performance issues at an early stage. 

 
5.6 Risk Management 

 

5.6.1    Performance issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect      

Council interests. 

 

5.7 Staffing 

 

5.7.1    The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some 

information relating to staffing. 

 

5.8 Corporate Priorities 
 

Page 51



5.8.1    The report presents progress monitoring of key performance indicators from the corporate 
priorities which highlight the areas of focus in the new BAU Covid era. 
 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

 

6.1 No Wards or Communities are affected. 

 

7.0 ACRONYMS 

 

7.1 PSPS – Public Sector Partnerships Ltd 

LCC – Lincolnshire County Council 

CTS – Council Tax Support 

ICO – Information Commissioner’s Office 

LGO - Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman 

 

Background papers:-  

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Corey Gooch, Senior Change and Performance Partner  

Telephone Number 07766510458 

Email: corey.gooch@Sholland.gov.uk  

 

Appendices attached to this report:  

 

Appendix A Q4 20/21 Performance and Business Intelligence Data   

 

Page 52



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

 Customer/Digital 
 Q4 19/20 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q3 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q4 20/21 
(Current 

reporting period) 

Change against 
Q3 20/21 

Comments 

% of customer services calls answered 87.46% 94.5% 90.26% -4.24% Q4 saw one of the highest volume 
of calls into the service since Q2 
2018, with 22,017 calls for the 
quarter. Additionally call duration 
in has increased by 60 seconds 
compared to the same period in 
2020 (4 min 41 secs). These rises 
in volumes and call durations are 
linked to the easing of lockdown 
restrictions as they affect 
residents, this is reflected in call 
volumes recorded within the call 
management system. Additionally 
March saw a large increase in calls 
due to Elections (271 calls) 
compared to the same period in 
March 20. Following the budget 
and the plans from the 
Government for the "Roadmap 
out of Lockdown", the customer 
service team have been actively 
supporting and signposting 
customers and continue to 
promote digital solutions.  
Customers are continuing to use 

Number of calls received 20,658 19,498 22,017 -2,519 (+12.9%) 

Average wait time (seconds) (calculated from 
after options have been selected) 

163 110 156 +46 seconds 

Average Call Duration (Once connected to 
customer contact agent) 

4 min 41 
Seconds 

5 min 17 
Seconds 

5 min 41 Seconds +24 Seconds 

P
age 53



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

email as a key form of contact, 
this quarter we saw a 56% 
increase (3486 emails) compared 
to the same period in 2020 (1402 
emails).  
 

Number of social media 
engagements/impressions - defined as the 
number of times our content is displayed, no 
matter if it was clicked or not. A viewer does not 
have to engage with the post in order for it to 
count as an impression. 

828,711 1,043,541  881,934 -15.4% Comparison between Q3 20/21 
and Q4 20/21 does show a 
reduction in both social media 
and website activity in this time. 
This has been reflective since the 
peak of COVID messaging back in 
Q1 20/21 and is a nationwide 
trend as audiences begin to 
experience fatigue with 
transactional, ongoing 
coronavirus messaging, whilst 
there is also a notable reduction 
in new COVID-based 
opportunities or messaging to 
share with residents and 
businesses compared to previous 
quarters.  
 
Our data and analytics show that 
between Q3 and Q4 our bounce 
rate on the website actually 
reduced by around 10%, meaning 
that less people were exiting the 
website unable to find what 
they’re after. The number of 

Number of unique website visitors - refers to the 
number of distinct individuals requesting pages 
from the website during a given period, 
regardless of how often they visit. 

88,970 105,456 86,429 -18% 

P
age 54



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

visitors to the home page and 
search function are also in line 
with the general reduction in 
website users, evidencing that we 
are not experiencing a drop-off 
after people reach this point.  
 
A fundamental website issue 
would be likely be reflected by a 
high number of people using the 
landing pages, but then quickly 
dropping off when they were 
unable to locate the service they 
wanted. A 10% decrease in 
bounce rate, coupled with a 9% 
increase in average time spent on 
the website in each session, 
would suggest that this is not the 
case.  
 
Promisingly, the numbers for 
social media remain higher than 
they were at the same point’s 
pre-COVID in 19/20, showing that 
a large proportion of the new 
audience who came to the 
Council for information when 
lockdown began will continue to 
engage with them moving 
forwards. The Communications 
team are currently working on 

P
age 55



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

new output and campaigns to run 
throughout the period of recovery 
to hopefully re-engage our 
audience and increase numbers 
again.    

      

% of FOI’s responded to in time 93% 84% 78% -6% As the council moves through the 
pandemic we have seen FOI 
numbers pick back up again, 
around 20-30% of total FOIs 
received for this period were 
COVID based, which makes up the 
increase in volumes. Whilst the 
total volumes have not increased 
by much from Q3 we are seeing 
the time taken to complete FOIs 
increase, this is largely due to the 
amount that are COVID based, 
this is data we have not had to 
provide or manage since the 
middle of last year so obtaining 
and collating this data can prove 
difficult in some instances. There 
is also a degree of legal and GDPR 
checks that will need to take place 
as this data is very new and not 
the sort of data as a council we 
have had to process before.  

Number of FOI received 85 100 102 +2 

% of complaints responded to in time 100% 68.18% 71.4% +3.2% 

P
age 56



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

Number of complaints responded to 7 22 26 +4 Complaint response times are 
improving but it important to 
note services are still facing 
significant pressure and increase 
in work volumes due to the 
pandemic. As always the key to 
complaints is understanding the 
root cause and addressing any 
issues, a key focus is also around 
understanding any trends around 
particular service areas of an area 
of the organisation. 
 

 Environmental services 
Name Q4 19/20 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q3 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q4 20/21 
(Current 

reporting period) 

Change against 
Q3 20/21 

Comments 

Number of missed waste collections 469 460 623 +163 Q4 has seen an increase into the 
number of missed waste 
collections, however when 
considering this figure is 61 
missed collections out of every 
100,000 this is still a very positive 
figure and does not demonstrate 
any issues with the delivery of this 
service. 
 
 

% of successful collections within the district 99.96% 99.86% 99.94% +0.08% 

P
age 57



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

During the month of February and 
early March we suffered from the 
severely bad weather with snow 
and ice, during the period the 
temperature was significantly low 
which had an effect with ice being 
around for a longer period of time 
up to 2/3 weeks and this 
increased the amount of missed 
collections due to the crews only 
being able to access certain roads 
 
 

Number of working days to deal with fly tipping 5.3 days 4 days 5.8 Days +1.8 days Like January and February, March 
has seen an escalation of the 
amount of reported fly tip 
incidents in the District 
 
 
“Small van load” was the largest 
size category and has been for the 
last 2/3 years.  The second largest 
is car boot size or less with 
household waste being tipped 
more than commercial waste. 
Data and evidence suggests fly 
tipping has increased 300% in 
rural communities nationwide 
over lockdown, although starting 
to reduce now. “ Other 
household” waste mostly 

Number of fly tips 250 371 580 +209 

Fly tips breakdown (monthly) July- 40 
August- 58 
September- 
66 

October - 
128 
November - 
136 
December - 
107 

January –178 
February -176 
March - 226 

Compared to 
same period last 
year 
January +102 
February +79 
March +149 

P
age 58



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

mattresses and furniture remains 
the items most likely to be fly 
tipped suggesting it is waste from 
households or landlords. House 
moves and tenant moves within 
district and outside contribute to 
this and those using small vehicles 
to clear homes and dump waste 
for cash.  
 

 Housing 
Name Q4 19/20 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q3 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q4 20/21 
(Current reporting 

period) 

Change against 
Q3 20/21 

Comments 

Cases prevented from Homelessness 9 31 Q4 Data not yet 
available 

N/A Prevention activity has increased 
during the pandemic due to the 
extended notice period of up to 6 
months across all tenures. For 
notices served after the 29 August 
2021, a 6 month notice period is 
required except for limited 
circumstances. There is a 
decrease in overall homeless 
applications taken but this is 
largely reflected in the number of 
applicants determined to be owed 
a relief duty.   

Housing re-let void time (total avg. Key to Key) 24 27 33 (Target is 28 
days or less) 

+6 Days As a result of the ongoing 
pandemic, additional planned 

P
age 59



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

Number of void days 1,600 2,139 2,190 +51 Days work is being carried out whilst 
properties are void. This includes 
the replacement of kitchens, 
bathrooms and heating systems. 
Ordinarily this would be done 
whilst the property is occupied. 
This will be reviewed in line with 
the easing of restrictions to 
ensure both safe working 
practices and efficient letting of 
properties. Additionally, there 
continues to be a higher level of 
void properties in our sheltered 
housing stock. There is a lower 
level of demand for sheltered 
accommodation, increasing the 
letting period in which to source a 
prospective tenant. 

Time taken to process DFG (Disabled Facilities 
Grant) applications 

200 301 261 -40 days This indicator has been affected 
by Covid-19, many people who 
need DFG applications were not 
able to have surveys undertaken 
as they were self-isolating. Due to 
the high demand for building 
services within the district, delays 
have occurred in appointing both 
local builders and builders 
through the LCC framework of 
which the Council is a 
member.  There is an increasing 
number of complex projects with 

P
age 60



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

an increased number requiring 
Planning permission, which will 
increase the timeframe whilst 
permission is sought. 

 Revenues and Benefits 
Name Q4 19/20 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q3 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q4 20/21 
(Current reporting 

period) 

Change against 
Q3 20/21 

Comments 

Business rate collection rate (%) (Cumulative) 97.32% 77.91% 92.46% (target is 
over 97.1%) 

-4.86% (compared 
to same period 
last year) 

This indicator finished 4.64% 
behind target and 4.86% behind 
last year's performance. 
 
This KPI has been significantly 
affected by COVID19. Whilst a 
large number of businesses (450) 
within the Retail, Hospitality and 
Leisure Discount scheme will 
receive 100% (£8.1m) relief in 
2020/21, a number of businesses 
fall outside that scheme and a 
significant number of these will 
still have been adversely affected 
by the implications of COVID19 
restrictions on businesses. The 
business rates team continues to 
support and signpost ratepayers 
to support available and where 
necessary make appropriate 
payment arrangements to best 

P
age 61



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

meet their business rates 
liabilities for 2020/21, as well as 
supporting on business grants 
operated by SHDC. 
 
We are currently awaiting details 
of additional funding that is being 
made available by central 
government to enable local 
authorities to provide additional 
support, in the form of business 
rates relief, to those businesses 
outside the retail, hospitality and 
leisure sectors that have still been 
adversely affected by Covid 19. 
 
The Magistrates Court cancelled 
the Liability Order hearings that 
were scheduled for February and 
March whilst they review their 
procedures, including trying to 
reduce the footfall of attendees at 
the Court.  These are now 
scheduled to recommence in 
April. 

Council tax collection rate (%) (Cumulative) 97.63% 83.84% 96.91% (Target is 
97% or higher) 

-0.72% (compared 
to this period last 
year) 

This indicator finished 0.19% 
behind target and 0.72% behind 
the previous financial year.  
 
This KPI has been significantly 
affected by COVID19. We have 

P
age 62



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

continued to support and signpost 
tax payers to support available 
and where necessary make 
appropriate payment 
arrangements to best meet their 
council tax liabilities for 2020/21. 
Proactive steps have been taken 
to engage directly with those 
customers who were subject to 
the Magistrates Liability Order 
Court hearings for 2020/21 (the 
first of which was 23 November 
2020) before determining 
whether further enforcement is 
required. The Magistrates Court 
took the decision to suspend the 
Liability hearings scheduled for 
February and March, across the 
district, whilst they reviewed their 
procedures as part of their 
response of keeping staff and 
attendees save in light of the new 
strain of Covid virus, including 
how they may further reduce 
footfall in to their building from 
attendees. These hearings are 
now scheduled to recommence 
from April. 
 
The team continues to be 
proactive when dealing with 

P
age 63



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

those customers in arrears and / 
or that are struggling to pay; 
ensuring they are made aware 
and claim any appropriate 
discounts or exemptions towards 
their Council Tax where they are 
entitled to do so. The team also 
continues to sign post customers 
to other financial support that 
may be available to them where 
appropriate. 

 HR 

Name Q4 19/20 
(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q3 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q4 20/21 
(Current reporting 

period) 

Change against 
Q3 20/21 

Comments 

Staff Turnover (%) 1.62% 1.63% 2.86%  +1.23% In Quarter 4 there were 6 leavers, 
these leavers range across 
multiple services and there are no 
trends or concerns raised from HR 
on these numbers. 

Working days lost to sickness per FTE ( per 
month) 

0.79 Days 0.72 Days 0.73 Days +0.01 Days  
No major changes to note in 
sickness for this quarter, having 
only slightly increased, 
departments with higher sickness 
levels are monitored and the HR 
team will work with managers 
and staff to ensure sickness is 
recorded correctly and ensure 

Number of working days lost to sickness  542 493 499 +6 days 

P
age 64



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

support that can be provided 
where appropriate. 

 Inward Investment 
Name Q4 19/20 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q3 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q4 20/21 
(Current reporting 

period) 

Change against 
Q3 20/21 

Comments 

Number of people on Universal Credit 3,128 7,513 (As of 
Nov 2020) 

4,255 (As of Feb 
2021) 

-3,258 The drop of 3,258 reflects the 
increase in demand over the 
Christmas period for staff in both 
the food and flower sectors who 
hit their main peaks at this time. 

Grants4growth delivery 13 21 17 -4 This slight drop simply reflects the 
natural ebb and flow of 
applications into G4G, which 
traditionally slows down over the 
Christmas holidays, this year not 
helped by the pandemic, but still 
higher than the pre-pandemic 
equivalent period for last year. 

 Public Protection 
Name Q4 19/20 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q3 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q4 20/21 
(Current reporting 

period) 

Change against 
Q3 20/21 

Comments 

Food Businesses Rated 'Generally Satisfactory' or 
Above 

98.47% 98.92 98.84% -0.08% 598 out of 605 food businesses 
inspected in the district are 
currently rated as Generally 

satisfactory (3 Start) or above. 

Number of COVID related business enquiries N/A 63 225 +162  

P
age 65



Appendix A 

SHDC Q4 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 20/21 

 

Number of COVID related business complaints N/A 62 82 +20  

 Planning 
Name Q4 19/20 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q3 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q4 20/21 
(Current reporting 

period) 

Change against 
Q3 20/21 

Comments 

% of Major applications determined within 13 
weeks or agreed extension 

88.89% 90.91% 100% (Target is 
over 60%) 

+9.9% It is pleasing to note all 11 Major 
applications were determined 
within 13 weeks or agreed 
extension. The performance of 
this KPI reflects that on major 
applications, the majority of 
developers were willing to work 
cooperatively and agree 
extensions of time where 
required. 
 
 

% of Minor applications determined within 8 
weeks or agreed extension 

93.24% 87.95% 89% (Target is 
over 70%) 

+1.05% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 66



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Portfolio Holder for Peoples, Places & Corporate, Councillor Nick Worth  

 

To: Performance Monitoring Panel, Wednesday 8th September 2021 

Cabinet, 26th October 2021 

 

Authors: Corey Gooch, Senior Change and Performance Partner and Matthew Hogan, 

Assistant Director, Strategic Growth 

 

Subject Q1 Performance Report 21/22 

 

Purpose: To provide an update on how the Council is performing for the period            

1st April 2021 to 30th June 2021 

 

 
Recommendation(s):  
 
1) That Performance Monitoring Panel note the contents of the report  

 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 The report seeks to provide Performance Monitoring Panel with an overview of a number of 

key performance indicators for the council. The report concerns the period of Quarter 1 

2021-22 (April 2021 until June 2021). 

 

1.2 The Quarter 1 2021-22 Performance Report detailed in Appendix A aims to provide 

members, businesses and residents with an overview of how the Council is performing 

against a number of key strategic indicators in an ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. The 

reported indicators will provide an indication of performance and business intelligence as 

compared to the previous year to highlight how key services have performed whilst the 

organisation has continued to respond to the challenges and pressures that the pandemic 

has presented to both the organisation and the district as a whole.   

 

1.3 As highlighted previously, members will note that the report does not contain a suite of 

performance indicators to the same scale and breadth as presented to the previously Panel 

in previous years. This is because, in many cases, the focus of many council services and 

their attendant resources has shifted away from pre-March 2020 ‘business as usual 

activity’, and are instead now focused on a different range of areas directly aligned to 

supporting the council with its pandemic response and recovery.  

 

1.4 Consequently, the report seeks to provide a summary of performance in key areas which 

reflect the current performance of the council in a number of critical areas, whilst the 

organisation remains focused on supporting its communities, residents and local business 

in extra-ordinary times. The narrative within the report seeks to provide supplementary 

commentary to support the data.  

 

2.0 KEY PERFORMANCE AND BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE INDICATORS 

 

Page 67

Agenda Item 12



2.1 The Council continues to adapt to how it has delivered its services since the start of the 

Covid-19 Pandemic both in terms of moving towards a more agile and remote based way of 

working, as well as responding to those most in need whether it be vulnerability or local 

businesses within the economy. 

 

2.2 In terms of sickness, we are seeing positive trends coming out of Q1, with our lowest 

sickness rates recorded for the organisation. This is something we are seeing nationwide, 

with overall sickness levels falling by around 2% since early 2020.  

 

2.3 The report demonstrates some further positive areas within the environmental services 

arena, with successful waste collections continuing to improve, indicating 99.95% of all 

collections made successfully for the quarter, additionally fly-tips reported has decreased 

by roughly 31% in Quarter 1. 

 

2.4 Despite reporting a positive Q4 for the contact centre, we have seen % of calls answered 

by the service drop to 83% in Q1. Below are some key points to note to aid an overall 

picture of customer contact demand at present. 

 

• We have seen a 22% increase in telephony demand in Q1 2021/22 vs 2020/21 

(23,355 vs 18,152 last year) 

• Emails for Q1 are double pre-pandemic levels at 3142 vs 1569, however slightly 

less emails than Q4 (3426) 

• Average call duration increased by 64 seconds in Q1 to 364, against Q1 last year at 

300  

• Average call duration excess of 64 seconds equates to a continuous 848 hours 

additional pressure (based on 5203 additional calls at an average of 364 seconds 

each) 

• Post and admin volumes remain at pandemic levels and is a statutory function to 

complete (a positive shift away from face to face and phones) 

• Huge demand in certain areas such as Housing (2503 calls in Q1 vs 288 in Q1 last 

year), Housing Repairs (3454 vs 1799 last year) and a steady increase in Waste 

(2493 vs 2306 last year) 

• Timings of a lot of these calls create surges into the contact centre first thing, 

limiting the ability over the course of the day to answer 80% within 120 seconds and 

during Q1 limiting ability to answer target of 90% 

 

Despite this however it is positive to note the average speed of answer across the whole of 

Q1 was 131 seconds for Customer Contact, this is a positive increase from 156 seconds for 

Q4. 

 

The team have experienced higher levels of staff attrition in recent months, therefore 

recruiting, inducting and onboarding of new staff takes time when losing experienced staff, 

it is worth noting that staff attrition rates are high in Q1 across all customer contact sectors 

and there are no concerning trends exclusive to South Holland District Council in this 

regard. 

 

The team are training and developing staff in line with business need, the focus is on 

quality over speed, ensuring that the customer is at the heart of this and trying where 

possible to resolve customer requests at first contact.  The team have internally resourced 

additional training, to expedite development of new starters, to maximise output.  The team 

continues to prioritise emails, to continue the positive self-service demand habits exhibited 

Page 68



through lockdown. It is also positive to note quality of service provided during Q1 has been 

91.75% and Customer satisfaction has been 100% with no complaints lodged.  Maintained 

increases in quality measures and customer satisfaction levels to more than double that 

pre-pandemic. 

 

The next steps are to bring in a new contact centre platform and replace the CRM with a 

new case management system, where better routing and data capture for the customer as 

well as more intelligent reporting to the clients in a more succinct way, performance will be 

monitored in line with this. 

2.5 The attached Appendix A, includes further data around housing, housing development, 

public protection, tax and benefits as well as community related indicators with supporting 

supplementary commentary alongside. Officers in attendance will be happy to take 

questions from the panel where further explanation and discussion if needed. 

 

 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 

3.1 That the contents of this report be noted 

 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

 

4.1 That the council’s performance is properly scrutinised 

 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 

 

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 

decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  

Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; 

Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk 

Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; 

Transformation Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be 

implications under one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 

 

5.1 Constitutional & Legal 

 

5.1.1    The report is made within the terms of reference of the Performance Monitoring Panel. 
 

5.2       Crime and Disorder 

 

5.2.1    The report contains indicators which does convey some information relating to crime and 

disorder. 

 

5.3 Financial 

 

5.3.1    The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some 

information relating to financial matters. 

 

5.4 Health & Wellbeing 

 

Page 69



5.4.1    The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some 

information relating to health and wellbeing. 

 

5.5 Reputation 

 

5.5.1    Performance issues can cause some reputational consequence. It is the purpose of this 

report to highlight performance issues at an early stage. 

 
5.6 Risk Management 

 

5.6.1    Performance issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect      

Council interests. 

 

5.7 Staffing 

 

5.7.1    The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some 

information relating to staffing. 

 

5.8 Corporate Priorities 
 

5.8.1    The report presents progress monitoring of key performance indicators from the corporate 
priorities which highlight the areas of focus in the new BAU Covid era. 
 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

 

6.1 No Wards or Communities are affected. 

 

7.0 ACRONYMS 

 

7.1 PSPS – Public Sector Partnerships Ltd 

LCC – Lincolnshire County Council 

CTS – Council Tax Support 

ICO – Information Commissioner’s Office 

LGO - Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman 

 

Background papers:-  

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Corey Gooch, Senior Change and Performance Partner  

Telephone Number 07766510458 

Email: corey.gooch@Sholland.gov.uk  

 

Appendices attached to this report:  

 

Appendix A Q1 21/22 Performance Report   

 

Page 70



Appendix A 

SHDC Q1 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 21/22 

 

 Customer/Digital 
Name Q1 20/21 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q4 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q1 21/22 
(Current 

reporting period) 

Change since 
previous quarter 

Comments 

% of customer services calls answered 92.6% 90.26% 83.07% -7.33% The customer contact team have 
experienced higher levels of staff 
attrition in recent months, 
recruiting, inducting and 
onboarding of new staff takes 
time when losing experienced 
staff (attrition rates are high in Q1 
across all sectors). 
 
The team are training and 
developing staff in line with 
business need, the focus is on 
quality over speed, ensuring that 
we have the customer at the 
heart of this and trying where 
possible to resolve customer 
requests at first contact.  CC have 
internally resourced additional 
training, to expedite development 
of new starters, to maximise 
output.  There is a ongoing focus 
on promoting self-service demand 
habits exhibited through 
lockdown. Quality of service 
provided during Q1 has been 

Number of calls received 17,659 22,017 22,507 +490 (+2.2%) 

Average wait time (seconds) (calculated from 
after options have been selected) 

101 156 131 -25 seconds 

Average Call Duration (Once connected to 
customer contact agent) 

5 min 00 
Seconds 

5 min 41 
Seconds 

6 min 4 seconds +23 Seconds 

P
age 71



Appendix A 

SHDC Q1 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 21/22 

 

91.75% and Customer satisfaction 
has been 100% with no 
complaints lodged.  Maintained 
increases in quality measures and 
customer satisfaction levels to 
more than double that pre-
pandemic. 
 
The next steps are to bring in a 
new contact centre platform and 
replace the CRM with a new case 
management system, where 
better routing and data capture 
for the customer as well as more 
intelligent reporting to the clients 
in a more succinct way.  

Number of social media 

engagements/impressions - defined as the 

number of times our content is displayed, no 

matter if it was clicked or not. A viewer does not 

have to engage with the post in order for it to 

count as an impression.  

1,554,795 881,934 860,424 -21,510 There has been a small reduction 

from Q4 of 20/21 to Q1 21/22 in 

both social media and website 

activity, as has consistently been 

the case since the peak of the 

pandemic in Q1 20/21. 

 

This is a nationwide trend that 

reflects an increasing fatigue with 

online social media platforms 

following lockdowns, as well as a 

reduction in key announcements 

or grants to pull traffic to the 

council’s platforms, and more of a 

Number of unique website visitors - refers to the 
number of distinct individuals requesting pages 
from the website during a given period, 
regardless of how often they visit. 

99,029 86,429 74,224 

 

-12,205 

P
age 72



Appendix A 

SHDC Q1 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 21/22 

 

return to a form of business as 

usual.  

 

Evidence of other analytics such 

as bounce rate, average time 

spent on page and engagement 

rates with our social media posts 

suggests that although out 

audience is decreasing as we 

move out of COVID, it is a much 

more engaged and connected 

audience than we had pre-

pandemic. This reflects that the 

way we placed ourselves as a 

reliable source of the latest 

information, guidance and news 

has made us a more trusted place 

for residents to come.  

 

The number of social media users 

also remains much higher than 

pre-pandemic levels (524,805 for 

Q1 19/20), suggesting that many 

of those who used the channels 

for the first time during COVID 

have continued to do so moving 

forwards.   

  

      

P
age 73



Appendix A 

SHDC Q1 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 21/22 

 

% of FOI’s responded to in time 74% 78% 84% +6% We are seeing incoming FOI 
numbers start to reduce to pre-
pandemic levels with 20 less 
received for the quarter, it is 
pleasing to note response times 
are improving also. 10-20% of 
total FOIs received for this period 
were COVID based, which makes 
up the increase in volumes. Whilst 
the total volumes have not 
decreased from Q4 we are seeing 
the time taken to complete FOIs 
continue to increase, this is 
largely due to the amount that 
are COVID based, this is data we 
have not had to provide or 
manage since the middle of last 
year so obtaining and collating 
this data can prove difficult in 
some instances.  Due to the shift 
in resources during and after the 
changes to the shared strategic 
partnership with Breckland, 
temporary resource was allocated 
to dealing with FOIs and 
complaints, this resource has now 
been made permanent on a 
secondment basis and we will 
look to embed a pro-active 
feedback loop, allowing us to 
understand trends of FOIs and 

Number of FOI received 59 102 82 -20 

P
age 74



Appendix A 

SHDC Q1 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 21/22 

 

Complaints and ensure they are 
prevented where possible, or 
signposted where appropriate. 

% of complaints responded to in time 84.6% 71.4% 82.6% +11.2% Complaint response times have 
improved significantly in line with 
the reasons we are seeing for 
FOIs, but it important to note 
services are still facing significant 
pressure and increase in work 
volumes due to the pandemic. 
Trends in complaints will be 
presented to service managers in 
the coming weeks and actions will 
be developed to focus on 
reducing any re-occurring areas of 
complaint we are seeing. 
 

Number of complaints received 14 29 39 +10 

 Environmental services 
Name Q1 20/21 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q4 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q1 21/22 
(Current 

reporting period) 

Change since 
previous quarter 

Comments 

Number of missed waste collections (total) 708 623 530 -93 Q1 has seen a positive decrease in 
the number of missed waste 
collections, this figure is 52 
missed collections out of every 
100,000, a very positive figure of 
only 0.0005% and does not 
demonstrate any issues with the 
delivery of this service.  

% of successful collections within the district 99.79% 99.94% 99.95% +0.05% 

P
age 75



Appendix A 

SHDC Q1 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 21/22 

 

 
It is pleasing to note this figure is 
performing better than the same 
period last year, despite the 
significant challenges faced due to 
HGV driver shortages 
 
 
 

Number of working days to deal with fly tipping 4.6 days 5.8 Days 5.7 Days -0.1 days There has been a decrease in the 
number of fly tips reported when 
comparing to last quarter. 
 
“Small van load” was the largest 
size category and has been for the 
last 2/3 years.  The second largest 
is car boot size or less with 
household waste being tipped 
more than commercial waste. 
Data and evidence suggests fly 
tipping has increased 300% in 
rural communities nationwide 
over lockdown, although starting 
to reduce now. “ Other 
household” waste mostly 
mattresses and furniture remains 
the items most likely to be fly 
tipped suggesting it is waste from 
households or landlords. House 
moves and tenant moves within 
district and outside contribute to 

Number of fly tips 307 575 395 -180 

Fly tips breakdown (monthly) April –79 
May -107 
June -121 

January –
178 
February -
176 
March - 221 

April –103 
May -136 
June -156 

Compared to 
same period last 
year 
April +24 
May +29 
June +35 

P
age 76



Appendix A 

SHDC Q1 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 21/22 

 

this and those using small vehicles 
to clear homes and dump waste 
for cash.  
 

 Housing and Community 
Name Q1 20/21 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q4 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q1 21/22 
(Current reporting 

period) 

Change since 
previous quarter 

Comments 

Cases prevented from Homelessness 0 20 7 -13 Staffing remains challenging in 
the Housing Options service, as 
reported through the strategic 
risk register. Therefore existing 
and temporary resources have 
been focussed on responding to 
current cases and presenting 
emergency demand. An 
emergency action plan has been 
deployed to ensure service 
recovery. It is therefore 
anticipated that the number of 
instances of homelessness 
prevented will increase. 

Housing re-let void time (total avg. Key to Key) 35 33 25.8 (Target is 28 
days or less) 

-8.8 Days It is pleasing to note Housing re-
let void times have decreased 
since the previous Quarter. As per 
previous update as a result of the 
ongoing pandemic, additional 
planned work is being carried out 
whilst properties are void. This 

Number of void days 1,765 2,190 1,987 -203 Days 

P
age 77



Appendix A 

SHDC Q1 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 21/22 

 

includes the replacement of 
kitchens, bathrooms and heating 
systems. Ordinarily this would be 
done whilst the property is 
occupied. Additionally, there 
continues to be a higher level of 
void properties in our sheltered 
housing stock. There is a lower 
level of demand for sheltered 
accommodation, increasing the 
letting period in which to source a 
prospective tenant. 

Time taken to process DFG (Disabled Facilities 
Grant) applications 

196 days 261 days 221.9 days -39.1 days Despite a positive decrease since 
the last quarter for this figure, 
This indicator has been affected 
by Covid-19, many people who 
need DFG applications were not 
able to have surveys undertaken 
as they were self-isolating. Due to 
the high demand for building 
services within the district, delays 
have occurred in appointing both 
local builders and builders 
through the LCC framework of 
which the Council is a 
member.  There is an increasing 
number of complex projects with 
an increased number requiring 
Planning permission, which will 
increase the timeframe whilst 
permission is sought. 

P
age 78



Appendix A 

SHDC Q1 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 21/22 

 

Participation at Leisure centres 0 0 50,519 +50,519 It is positive to note this figure is 
rising since the lifting of 
lockdown, whilst still not at pre-
pandemic attendance levels this 
figure will continue to be 
monitored and focus will be given 
to continuing to increase 
attendance figures. (For 
reference, pre-covid levels were 
averaging at around 70,000-
80,000 visitors each quarter) 

 Revenues and Benefits 
Name Q1 20/21 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q4 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q1 21/22 
(Current reporting 

period) 

Change since 
previous quarter 

Comments 

Business rate collection rate (%) (Cumulative) 27.52% 92.46% 29.49% (target is 
over 29%) 

+1.97% 
(compared to 
same period last 
year) 

It is pleasing to note this figure is 
on target 

Council tax collection rate (%) (Cumulative) 29.07% 96.91% 
(Target is 
97% or 
higher) 

29.5% (Target is 
26% or higher) 

+0.43% 
(compared to this 
period last year) 

It is pleasing to note this figure is 
on target 

 HR 

Name Q1 20/21 
(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q4 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q1 21/22 
(Current reporting 

period) 

Change since 
previous quarter 

Comments 

P
age 79



Appendix A 

SHDC Q1 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 21/22 

 

Staff Turnover (%) 1.98% 2.86% 4.4% (target is 
below 4.2) 

+1.54% In Quarter 1 there were 11 
leavers, with over 50% of reasons 
for leaving be classed as 
resignations, 30% being end of 
fixed term contracts and the 
remainder being classed as 
“Other” 
 
A recent recruitment campaign of 
a neighbouring authority has had 
a material impact on the housing 
team through the number of 
vacancies on offer. Actions are 
being followed up to ensure the 
Council is doing all it can to retain 
staff.   

Working days lost to sickness per FTE ( per 
month) 

0.96 Days 0.73 Days 0.67 Days (target 
is below 0.83 
days) 

-0.05 Days Sickness levels are very positive at 
some of the lowest levels we have 
seen. 

Number of working days lost to sickness  667 499 459 -40 days 

 Inward Investment 
Name Q1 20/21 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q4 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q1 21/22 
(Current reporting 

period) 

Change since 
previous quarter 

Comments 

Number of grants awarded via Grants4Growth 21 17 22 -1 £231,379 was awarded in Q1, a 
big increase from £150,992 in the 
previous quarter. In total there 
were 44 businesses assisted to 

P
age 80



Appendix A 

SHDC Q1 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 21/22 

 

grow or develop via the grants4 
growth scheme in Q1. 

 Public Protection 
Name Q1 20/21 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q4 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q1 21/22 
(Current reporting 

period) 

Change since 
previous quarter 

Comments 

Food Businesses Rated 'Generally Satisfactory' or 
Above 

98.46% 98.84% 98.99% +0.15% 589 out of 595 food businesses 
inspected in the district are 
currently rated as Generally 

satisfactory (3 Start) or above. 

Number of COVID related business enquiries 63 225 61 -164  

Number of COVID related business complaints 62 82 24 -58  

 Planning 
Name Q1 20/21 

(Same time 
period last 

year) 

Q4 20/21 
(Previous 
Quarter) 

Q1 21/22 
(Current reporting 

period) 

Change since 
previous quarter 

Comments 

% of Major applications determined within 13 
weeks or agreed extension 

100% (Target 
is over 60%) 

100% (Target 
is over 60%) 

100% (Target is 
over 60%) 

0% It is pleasing to note all 14 Major 
applications were determined 
within 13 weeks or agreed 
extension. The performance of 
this KPI reflects the nature of the 
applications determined, 
proactive approach to 
development and need to work 
with applicants to agree 
extensions of time where 
appropriate as major applications 

% of Minor applications determined within 8 
weeks or agreed extension 

95.68% 
(Target is 
over 70%) 

89% (Target 
is over 70%) 

100% (Target is 
over 70%) 

+11% 

P
age 81



Appendix A 

SHDC Q1 Performance and Business Intelligence 
Report- 21/22 

 

often involve complex issues and 
require S106 agreements. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 82



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report of: Assistant Director – Governance (Joint Monitoring Officer) 

  

To: Performance Monitoring Panel Wednesday, 8 September 2021  

 

(Author: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Team Leader) 

 

Subject Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme 

 

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel 

 

Recommendation 
 
That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion. 
 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 

inclusion on its Work Programme.   
 
1.2 Issues 

 
1.2.1 Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
 consideration. These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
 referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet.  The appendix will be updated as new 
 items are identified. 
 
1.2.2 Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The table 
 shows: 
 

• The name of the task group 

• What it wants to achieve 

• Key dates 

• Membership of the task group 

• When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel 
 
1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a 

standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide the 
opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme. 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 
 
2.2 To do nothing. 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To allow councillors to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the 

Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date. 
 

Page 83

Agenda Item 13



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide councillors 

with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar items and 
proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
 In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of 
 the decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;  
 Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
 Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk  Management; 
 Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 
 Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications  
 under one or more of these headings, these are identified below. 
 
5.1 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, councillors consider the 

suitability of the subject, taking into account considerations such as whether the issue is 
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.  One of the 
indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how strongly the 
topic links to the Council’s key aims and priorities.  

 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 This report has no implications however, as individual items are progressed through the 

Work Programme, their impact on wards and communities will be assessed. 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 None. 
 

Background papers:- None  

 

Lead Contact Officer 

Name and Post: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Team Leader 

Telephone Number  

Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Key Decision: No  

 

Exempt Decision: No  

 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service  

 

Appendices attached to this report:  

Appendix A Work Programme Calendar 2021/22 

Appendix B Task Group Work Programme 2021/22 

 

Page 84



 APPENDIX A 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME 

ITEMS 2021/22 
 
 

 
Date of 
Meeting 

 
Agenda items 

 

8 September 
2021 

• Economic Development and Inward Investment update – 
(first update received 11 September 2019, updated reports to 
be on a six-monthly basis, to include an executive summary 
alongside the main report). COVID-relevant update received 
8/7/20, and further update received on 27/1/21. 

• Regional Manager for DWP to explain Universal Credit and 
other projects that the DWP are working on (to be considered 
alongside the Economic Development update) 

• Q4 2021/22 Performance Report  

• Q1 2022/23 Performance Report 

• Marketing/Renovation of Industrial units – six monthly update  
requested at meeting held 29/1/20 – last update received 
9/9/20) 

• Consideration to be given to the setting up of the South 
Holland Centre Task Group  

Oct 2021 
Special 
meeting – date 
to be confirmed 

• Superintendent Mark Howsley to attend meeting to address 
issues raised at meeting of PMP on 27 January 2021, and 
any other questions 

• Update report on progress of the Digital Work Programme 
(Six-monthly updates requested at meeting held 29/1/20, last 
update received 9/9/20). To include financial information-how 
much of funding used, what it had been used for and whether 
VFM achieved. 

• Update report on progress of the Northgate System in 
Housing (Jason King) 

9 November 
2021 

• Crime and Disorder – Update report on community safety 
and how it is being delivered through the various tiers of 
Groups and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly 
formed Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six 
months by the Portfolio Holder for Community Development. 
Last discussed at meetings on 18/6/19, 11/9/19, a COVID-
relevant update on 8/7/20, and 27/1/21. 

• Q2 2022/23 Performance Report 

• Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group – update report 
on the current status of recommendations, and an update on 
all the issues raised by the original task group (as requested 
by PMP November 2020).  Decision then to be taken on 
whether new Task Group necessary.  

• Six-monthly update report on Refuse Collection from Private 
Drives (first reported 8/7/20)  

• Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group – 
update on progress of recommendations (last updates 
received 18 June 2019, 11 September 2019 and 10 
November 2020). Include information requested at November 
2020 meeting. 

Page 85



• Corporate Enforcement – update report on how the Authority 
is addressing the various types of enforcement, following the 
Authority-wide reorganisation (last update 6/2/18, 31/7/18, 
30/1/19, 12/11/19 & 27/1/21). Six-monthly 

5 January 2022 
Joint PMP/PDP 

• Budget Scrutiny 

26 January 
2022 

• Q3 2022/23 Performance Report 

• Workforce Strategy 2019-2023 (revised following CV19) – 
considered at Council 29/7/20 – Diarise to monitor 
achievement against the 2 schedules considered – April-July 
2021 

16 March 2022 •  

Items yet to be 
allocated. 

• Information report on future commercialisation projects 
(Richard Hodgson/Christine Marshall – last update 13 
November 2018). 

• Commercialisation (2) – how effectively is the Authority 
managing commercial opportunities?  Second report, a 
general report around commercialisation. 

• What areas of risk exist within Public Services for cost 
shunting, and how can this be avoided?  

 
 
For future consideration 
 

• Note: Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and PDP have 
requested that a special Joint Meeting will be held to discuss the setting up 
of the South Holland Building Consultancy prior to it being considered by 
Cabinet (date to be confirmed). 

• Commercialisation – As potential projects arise, PMP to consider scrutiny 
 

**************** 
To be considered annually: 
 

1) The Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group presented its Final 
Report to Council on 21 January 2015.  Its first recommendation was: 

 
That the Council (i) advises the Charity Commission that the Task Group has 
considered the Commission’s Guidance on public benefit and is satisfied that the 
Council is compliant; (ii) provides a copy of this report to the Commission in order to 
outline the actions proposed by the Council; and (iii) invites  the Performance 
Monitoring Panel to appoint a Task Group on an annual (single meeting) basis 
for the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council remains compliant with 
Charity Commission Guidance. 
 
A meeting took place on 24 January 2019. Suggest next meeting January 2021 
 

2) Review of Implemented Planning Decisions – Tour undertaken 5 
September 2019, next tour to be undertaken in September 2020  
UPDATE – Provisionally booked for 15 September 2021 – to be reviewed 
May 2021 in light of Covid situation 
Date of 15 September 2021 cancelled as a result of ongoing Covid 
situation – to be re-visited early 2022 

Page 86



APPENDIX B 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2021/2022 
 

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership 
of Task 
Group 

Proposed date of 
report to Panel 

Public Open Spaces Task 
Group 

To be confirmed at first meeting. 12 
November 
2019 

TBC B Alcock 
J R Astill 
A C Beal 
CJTH Brewis 
PA Redgate 

TBC 

Public Toilets Task Group To review public toilets in the district, looking at 
location, cleaning regimes, usage, reasons for 
closure and running costs. 
To use information gathered to ensure value 
for money, good service, and that the right 
money was spent in the right place. 

6 February 
2018 

23 April 2018 J R Astill 
CJTH Brewis 
T A Carter 
GK Dark 
(Chairman) 
PC Foyster 

30 January 2019 
To Cabinet 12 
Feb 2019  
Response from 
Cabinet to PMP 
20 Mar 2019. 
Update on 
progress PMP 
11/9/19 & 29/1/20. 

Swimming Pool and 
Leisure Centre Contract 
Task Group 

To review the Spalding swimming pool and 
leisure centre, specifically: 

• To consider performance, in relation to the 
contract, by the Authority and the 
contractor, particularly with reference to 
building maintenance and cleanliness, 
promotion of the facilities and reinvestment 
in the facilities; 

1 December 
2015 

21 January 
2016 

J R Astill 
T A Carter 
G K Dark 
(Chairman) 
J L King 
A M Newton 

30 August 2016 
To Cabinet 8 
November 2016 
 
Response and 
update on 
progress PMP 
4/2/17, 16/5/17, 

P
age 87



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership 
of Task 
Group 

Proposed date of 
report to Panel 

• To look at the Council’s performance in 
monitoring the leisure facilities; and 

• To learn from the outcomes of this scrutiny, 
to inform future contracts and contract 
monitoring. 

7/11/17, 13/11/18, 
8/06/19 & 11/9/19. 
Next update was 
due 10/11/20 

Sir Halley Stewart Playing 
Field Task Group 

Recommendation of the original Task Group to 
appoint a Task Group on an annual (single 
meeting) basis for the specific purpose of 
ensuring that the Council remained compliant 
with Charity Commission Guidance. 

15 June 
2016 

Date to be 
confirmed. 

GR Aley 
JR Astill 
GK Dark 
PC Foyster 
AM Newton 

Meeting took 
place on 24 
January 2019. 
 
Suggest Jan 21 

Effectiveness of CCTV 
Task Group 

Purpose of Review – To establish the current 
situation with regard to CCTV and make 
recommendations to Cabinet on the way 
forward. 
 
Terms of Reference – To examine the 
effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service and 
prospects for future provision. 
 
Panel received update on 8 April 2014 from the 
Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society 
on the position regarding CCTV.  Performance 
information will be available on the new system 
in the future, once it becomes operational.  
The Task Group will remain in operation to 
scrutinise performance and will start to do 

6 November 
2012  

21 November 
2012  

B Alcock 
M Howard 
R M Rudkin 
D J Wilkinson 
(Chairman) 
 
 
   

Interim report to 
PMP 29 January 
2013  
Interim report to 
Cabinet 19 
February 2013. 
Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 26 March 
2013 
Updates to PMP: 
8 April 2014, and 
six-monthly 
thereafter.  

P
age 88



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership 
of Task 
Group 

Proposed date of 
report to Panel 

this once the information becomes 
available. 

The effectiveness of 
management companies 
set up to undertake 
maintenance on 
residential estates 
throughout the district 
past, present and for the 
future. 

Scope to be confirmed. 25 
November 
2014 

To be 
confirmed 

To be 
confirmed 

To be confirmed 

 

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2a) Performance Monitoring Panel
	2b) Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel
	2c) Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel
	7 Key Decision Plan
	8 Economic Development/Inward Investment update
	11 Q4 Performance Overview Report 20/21
	Appendix 1 for Q4 Performance Overview Report

	12 Q1 21/22 Performance Overview
	Appendix 1 for Q1 22/23 Performance Overview

	13 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


